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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FTRGEENREEENWED

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of China
Automotive Interior Decoration Holdings Limited (the “Company”),
| am pleased to present the audited annual results of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale
of nonwoven fabric related products used in automotive interior
decoration parts and other parts, the trading of rubber and food
products. The Group deploys financial resource to securities
investment and fund investment to achieve earnings in the form of
capital appreciation and income from dividends. The Group also taps
into the business of financial services through the investment in a
securities house.

Manufacture and sale of nonwoven fabric
related products

Manufacture and sale of nonwoven fabric related products is one
of the principal business of the Group. The Group manufactures its
products with single layer or multiple layers of nonwoven fabric in
accordance with specific requirements and standards of different
customers. Most of the customers of nonwoven fabric related
products are primary manufacturers and suppliers of automotive
parts in the PRC. The majority of the Group's products are further
processed by these customers in order to make different automotive
parts such as floor, head lining, seat cover, parcel tray, trunk,
luggage-side trim, hubcap and car-mat, which are of different
characteristics and are to be applied for different usages in passenger
vehicles.

According to the statistics released from China Association of
Automobile Manufacturers ("CAAM"), the production and sales of
passenger vehicles in the PRC were approximately 21,408,000 units
and 21,482,000 units respectively for the year ended 31 December
2021, representing an increase of approximately 7.1% and 6.5%.
These favorable growth in passenger vehicles market resulted in a
stable demand for automotive materials of the Group during 2021.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

IFEBREREREEAWEDN (F)

In order to diversify the Group’s existing business portfolio and
broaden its source of income in automotive industry, the Group set
up new production lines in Jilin Province, the PRC in the second
half of 2021 for the supply of the automotive components (the
“Automotive Components”) to a components supplier of an
automotive manufacturer under the brand “FAW Toyota” (the
“Components Supplier”).

Supply and procurement operation

The Group commenced its business of rubber trading since 2012
and the quoted price of rubber was generally varied according to
the tendency of the commodities markets. To manage the risk, the
Group mainly carried out that business in back-to-back model. As
the significant fluctuation in price of top commodities, crude oil, the
Group only accepted the orders with lower default risk.

Since 2016, the Group resumed the business of trading of food
products such as dairy products, flour-based products and nuts
which generated steady income to the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021.

Interest in an associate

The Company through a joint venture company indirectly hold 42%
of the equity interest in GEO Securities Limited (“GEO Securities”)
and classified as “interest in an associate” at 31 December 2021.
GEO Securities has the licenses to carry out Type 1 (dealing in
securities), Type 4 (advising on securities) and Type 9 (Asset
Management) regulated activities under the Securities and Future
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) in Hong Kong.
The Group shared a profit of an associate of approximately RMBO.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

IFEBREREREEAWEDN (F)

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020 was illustrated as follows:

Bt 7% B B

WA
BE_T-—FRZZT_FTF+ZA=+—HL
FE-AEEMHBRAERIIAT

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2021 2020
—E=-—F —TF
RMB’000 RMB 000
ARET ARETT

Nonwoven fabric related products for use BRAENESHMIERE®R

in automobiles

— Sales of automotive floor carpets —REMBAEE 157,976 40,027
— Sales of other automotive parts —HMRER NS 6,554 68,668
Sales of rubber BRBHEE 6,719 8,366
Sales of food products RmMEE 10,452 24,565
181,701 141,626

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's revenue
increased to approximately RMB181.7 million, compared to
approximately RMB141.6 million in 2020, representing an increase
of approximately 28.2%. The increase in the Group's revenue was
mainly attributable to the increase in revenue of manufacturing and
sale of nonwoven fabric related products.

Gross profit

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s gross profit
increased by approximately 3.71% to approximately RMB24.0 million.
The increase was mainly due to the increase in the Group’s revenue.

Other gain or losses

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s other gain or
losses increased by approximately RMB1.4 million from approximately
RMB5.9 million in 2020 to approximately RMB7.3 million in 2021.
The increase was mainly due to realised gain on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss of approximately RMB3.6 million in
2021.

CHINA AUTOMOTIVE INTERIOR DECORATION HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

ITEBREREEENRESN (F

Administrative expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s administrative
expenses mainly consist of employee benefits expenses including
Director's emoluments and staff costs of approximately RMB8.4
million, share based payment expenses of approximately RMB2.2
million, depreciation of right-of-use assets of approximately RMB2.8
million. As the increase in the Group's revenue, the Group's
administrative expenses increased by approximately RMB7.9 million
to approximately RMB23.7 million.

Loss attributable to the owners of the Company

The loss attributable to the owners of the Company was
approximately RMBO0.4 million for the year of 2021 compared with a
loss of approximately RMB3.9 million for the corresponding period of
2020. The changes are primarily attributable to the increase in sales
volume of nonwoven fabric related automotive components and
the increase in realised gain on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2021.

PROSPECT AND OUTLOOK

The Board expects that 2022 will be a challenging year for the
business of manufacturing and sale of nonwoven fabric related
products as the continuously increase in production costs for
maintaining competitiveness and enhancing safety requirements to
cope with the development of the automotive industry.

To maintain competitiveness, the Group will still deploy its resources
on:

(1) upgrading the production lines in order to improve the
production efficiency;

(2) installing new machineries to suit the customers’ varying
requirements and demands on high-end products;

(3) conducting research and development to keep up with
the latest technological trends in relation to product
specifications; and

4) strengthening the quality control systems to retain customer
loyalty and reinforce the Group's reputation in the nonwoven
fabric related products industry in the PRC.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

TEBREREEENRESN (F

As a result of the increasing risk of volatility in rubber price since
the fluctuation in price of crude oil, the Group would be cautious in
accepting orders to avoid any downside exposure. For the business
of trading of food products, the Group will continue to find new
customers to strengthen its customer base.

In addition, the Group will continue to adopt a prudent approach to
manage its money lending business and on the other hands to seek
for opportunities to expand this operation.

Going forward, with a view to achieving better return and enhancing
the expansion of the Group, the Group will look for potential
investment opportunities to diversify its business scope.

RAISING OF FUNDS AND USE OF PROCEEDS

On 16 February 2021, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent pursuant to which the Company
has conditionally agreed to place up to 71,663,616 placing shares
at a price of HK$0.32 per placing share (the “Placing”). The placing
shares were allotted and issued on 3 May 2021. Net proceeds from
the Placing was approximately HK$22.3 million (the “Net Proceeds”)
which was intended to be applied as to (i) approximately HK$10.3
million for repaying the bank borrowings; and (ii) approximately
HK$12.0 million for installation and general working capital of
the business in Automotive Components. At 31 December 2021,
the application of Net Proceeds and the expected time frame for
application of the unutilised proceeds as follows:

Original intended

BN ERERKBEEEBERIKE MR RGN
WARBENENTERFRBERE L2 E
MEEFE ARREZFEH IO AKREKEES
B E P AR AP AR -

BN AEBBEERDNBETEZERREES
NeSKEEERERZES-

RERNK RERFTLEMHMTEREENER
AEEBMEREENNRERE BRETCLER
HER-

ESESRFBREAR
RZE-Z—F A+ A ARAREEERER
YREHH Bt AAREEREREREERS
71,663,616/ Bl & i% 17 - & IR Bl & IR () B 1% £0.32
BT(IREEHE]) BERMR_Z=Z—FHA
“HEZBERBT EESEZABREFENA
NRIEEBT([AEREBEFA]D) BIEZODTAHAR
A ()41038 88T ARNEERTER: &)
WI20BEBETREAESHHEBRHNLTER—
REELES - N _T-_—F+_A=+—8 8
FRIEFEARLBANKRESAAMBERENTELR
BRABERDOT:

Expected timeline
of full application
of the remaining

Actual use of
proceeds up to

Remaining
balance at

use of proceeds 31 December 2021 31 December 2021 proceeds
BE-Z=--F

tTZA=t+-8 R=B=-F EEBAHT
FERERL LLFBHRE +ZA=t+-H FiEREN
Nature g RERR ERAZ & RHRER
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET FAT THET
0] Repaying the bank borrowings iy BERATER 10,300 10,300 = =
(i) Installation and general working capital of (iy KRETPHEBRER-KEELES Before
the business in Automotive Components 12,000 9,024 2,976 30 June 2022
RZZ-Z%
NAZTER

22,300 19,324 2,976
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

IFEBREREREEAWEDN (F)

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group generally financed its operations by internal cash
resources and bank financing during 2021. On 3 May 2021, the
Company placed 71,663,616 new shares at placing price of HK$0.32
per placing share and raised a fund of approximately HK$22.3
million. At 31 December 2021, cash and bank balances of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB24.6 million (2020: RMB26.8
million), and approximately RMB16.8 million (2020: RMB15.7 million)
of which are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States
dollars.

At 31 December 2021, the Group’s liquidity ratio, represented by
the ratio of current assets over current liabilities, and gearing ratio,
represented by the ratio of total debt to total equity, were 1.83
(2020: 1.81) and 0.18 (2020: 0.26) respectively.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Except for those disclosed under the section “RAISING OF FUNDS
AND USE OF PROCEEDS", there has been no material change in the
capital structure of the Group since 31 December 2021.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Majority of the assets and liabilities of the Group were denominated
in Renminbi, United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars. At
31 December 2021, the Group had no significant exposure under
foreign exchange contracts, interest, currency swaps or other
financial derivatives.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

At 31 December 2021, the Group held (i) approximately 4.5 million
shares (approximately 1.9%) of Tai Kam Holdings Limited (“TK"), (ii)
approximately 5.5 million shares (approximately 3.3%) of Harbour
Digital Asset Capital Limited (“HD") and (iii) approximately 22.8
million shares (approximately 3.2%) of Wealth Glory Holdings
Limited ("WG"). TK, HD and WG were the companies listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange. TK is principally engaged in construction
business mainly site formation works and renovation works in Hong
Kong. HD is principally engaged in the investments in listed and
unlisted securities. WG is principally engaged in trading of natural
resources and commodities; money lending business; development
and promotion of brands, design, manufacture and sale of trendy
fashion merchandises and other consumer products; and investment
in securities.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

IFEBREREREEAWEDN (F)

The Group also held a discretionary investment fund (“Discretionary
Fund”) as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
The investment in the Discretionary Fund was approved by the
shareholders of the Company at the general meeting of the Company
held on 16 February 2016. The Discretionary Fund is managed by
a corporation licensed under the Securities and Future Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The investment objective
of the Discretionary Fund is to generate income and/or achieve
capital appreciation through investing in a variety of the authorized
investments.

The Group’s investment in TK, HD, WG and the Discretionary Fund
were collectively referred to as the “Significant Investments”.

Detail of the Significant Investments are as follows:

Year ended

31 December 2021
BE-ZE=--%
t+=A=+-H
LEE

Fair Value
gain/(loss)
ATEKRE/
(B#8)
RMB’000
ARBTR

TK B3] 654
HD BERT 3312
WG 28 1,100
Discretionary Fund MiEES (2,684)

Except the above, at 31 December 2021, there was no investment
held by the Group which value was more than 1% of the total assets
of the Group.

Looking ahead, the value of the Significant Investments may be
susceptible to the overall equity market conditions.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS

There was no material acquisitions or disposal of subsidiaries and
affiliated companies by the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

ITEBREREEENRESN (F

PLEDGE ON ASSETS

At 31 December 2021, the Group’'s buildings with a carrying
amounts of approximately RMB4.8 million (2020: RMB5.1 million)
and leasehold land with a carrying amounts of approximately RMB2.3
million (2020: RMB2.4 million) were pledged to banks for bank
borrowings.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

At 31 December 2021, the Group employed a total of 223
employees (2020: 220). The remuneration policy of the employees of
the Group was set up by the Board on the basis of their experience,
qualifications and competence. Other employees’ benefits include
contributions to statutory mandatory provident funds, and social
insurance together with housing provident funds to its employees in
Hong Kong and the PRC respectively.

A remuneration committee was set up for, inter alia, reviewing the
Group's remuneration policy and structure for all directors and senior
management of the Group.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Group, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my sincere gratitude to all of our customers, business
partners and investors for their support and trust towards the Group.
Further, I would like to express my sincere thanks to our Directors
and employees for their dedications and contributions to the Group.

By order of the Board

Zhuang Yuejin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 20 April 2022
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEENBERER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhuang Yuejin, aged 59, is the Chairman of the Board, Chief
Executive Officer of the Company and founder of the Group. He
was appointed as an executive Director on 12 April 2010. He has
over 15 years of experience in the nonwoven textile industry. He
is responsible for formulating the Group’s corporate strategy,
overseeing its production operations and the overall steering of the
Group's strategic development.

Mr. Zhuang graduated from Xiamen Fisheries College in 1981
and was approved as a qualified engineer by the Intermediate
Level Adjudication Committee of Xiamen City Marine Engineering
Department in 1990. From 1997 to 2001, Mr. Zhuang was the
director and the general manager of Xiamen Marine Industries
(Group) Co., Limited, a PRC incorporated company and was
previously listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Mr. Wong Ho Yin, aged 52, was appointed as an executive Director
and company secretary on 30 June 2011. He graduated from Hong
Kong Polytechnic University with a Master of Corporate Governance
Degree and a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Accountancy. He is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a member of both the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wong was the financial controller
and company secretary of a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. He has extensive experience in accounting and
corporate compliance.

Ms. Xiao Suni, aged 38, was appointed as an executive Director on
14 October 2014. She has over 10 years of experience in the field
of international trading and marketing. She holds a Bachelor of Arts
degree from Nanjing Army Command College, the PRC with major
in English. Prior to joining the Group, she worked for a door-window
manufacturer in the PRC as foreign trade manager, in which her
responsibilities focused on overall management of foreign sales and
marketing.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Mak Wai Ho, aged 49, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 9 September 2011. He was graduated
from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology with a
Bachelor degree in Business Administration in Finance. He is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the
United Kingdom and a practising member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He is a practising certified public
accountant and has more than 20 years of experience in finance,
accounting and auditing.

Ms. Ng Li La, Adeline, aged 43, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 4 September 2015. Ms. Ng has over 10
years of experience in human resources and corporate management.
Ms. Ng obtained a Certificate of Human Resources Management from
Hong Kong Baptist University in 2011 and was a senior administrative
officer of a renowned international information technology company
in Hong Kong.

Ms. Zhu Chunyan, aged 45, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 2 September 2016. Ms. Zhu was graduated
from Xiangtan University, China, with a bachelor’s degree majoring in
finance and accounting in July 1999. Prior to joining the Group, she
worked for a sizable travel related services company in the PRC as an
accountant and gained extensive knowledge in corporate finance and
management.
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EENGREEENBEER (&

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Han Zhiqing, aged 68, has been the deputy general manager
of Joystar (Wuxi) Automotive Interior Decoration Co., Ltd.
("Joystar Wuxi”) since 2004 and is responsible for coordinating the
technological development and mechanical support for the Group.

Mr. Han graduated from Shanghai Wool and Jute Textile Company
Workers” University in 1982, specialising in woolen textile. Mr. Han
has over 10 years of extensive experience in the industrial use textile
industry.

Ms. Wu Danping, aged 47, is the manager of the accounting
department of Joystar Wuxi. Ms. Wu is responsible for the financial
reporting and the management of the accounting and finance
department of Joystar Wuxi.

Ms. Wu obtained the Certificate of Accounting Professional issued
by the Jiangsu Province Department of Finance and the Qualification
Certificate of Specialty and Technology with specialty in accountancy
conferred by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC in 1997 and 2006
respectively.

In 2008, Ms. Wu completed an online diploma programme in
accountancy from China Agricultural University. She has 18 years of
experience in financial accounting and reporting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report for
the year ended 31 December 2021. This report highlights the key
corporate governance practices of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance to protect the interests of the shareholders of
the Company. The Company's corporate governance practices are
based on principles and code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (“Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. A
new Corporate Governance Code (the “New CG Code”) as set out
in existing Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules has come into effect on
1 January 2022, their requirements are applicable to the financial
year commencing on 1 January 2022. Currently, the Company has
adopted the code provisions on Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report as set out in the previous Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules before the New CG Code came into effect.

Except for the deviation from Code provision A.2.1, A.6.7 and
E.1.2, the Company complied with the Code for the year ended
31 December 2021.

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Zhuang Yuejin is the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Such deviation from
Code provision A.2.1 is deemed appropriate as it is considered to
be more efficient to have one single person as the Chairman of
the Company as well as to discharge the executive functions of a
chief executive officer, and it provides the Group with strong and
consistent leadership in the development and execution of long
term business strategies. The Board believes that the balance of
power and authority is adequately ensured by the operations of the
Board which comprises highly experienced individuals. There are
three independent non-executive Directors on the Board. All of them
possess adequate independence and therefore the Board considers
the Company has achieved balance and provided sufficient protection
of its interests.

Code provision A.6.7 and E.1.2 stipulates that the Chairman of
the Board should attend the annual general meeting and non-
executive Directors should attend general meetings of the Company.
Owing to other business engagements, the Chairman of the Board,
Mr. Zhuang Yuejin and three independent non-executive directors,
Mr. Mak Wai Ho, Ms. Ng Li La, Adeline and Ms. Zhu Chunyan, was
unable to attend the annual general meeting of Company held
on 30 June 2021 (the "AGM"). However, the senior management
and the executive Directors of the Company subsequently reported
to them on the enquiries from the shareholders of the Company
in the general meetings for them to gain and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders of the Company.
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CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry with all Directors,
the Company confirmed that all Directors have complied with the
code of conduct and the required standard of dealings concerning
securities transactions by the Directors during the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

At 31 December 2021, the Board comprises three executive Directors
and three independent non-executive Directors as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhuang Yuejin (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Ho Yin
Ms. Xiao Suni

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Mak Wai Ho
Ms. Ng Li La, Adeline
Ms. Zhu Chunyan

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director
having sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate and strategic
planning experience and/or expertise relevant to the business of the
Group. The biographical details of the Directors and the relationship
among the members of the Board are set out in the section headed
"Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management” on
pages 12 to 14 of this report.

Generally, the responsibilities of the Board include:
o Formulation of overall strategic development of the Group;

o Monitoring the financial performance, risk management and
internal control systems of the Group’s business operations;

o Evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it
is willing to take in achieving the Group's strategic objectives,
and ensuring that appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems are in places;
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o Material acquisitions, investments, disposal of assets or any
significant capital expenditure;

o Appointment, removal or reappointment of Board members
and auditors;

o Remuneration of Directors;

o Communications with key stakeholders;

o Recommendation and declaration of any interim and final
dividends.

Executive Directors are responsible for running the Group and
executing the strategies adopted by the Board. The Board delegates
day-to-day activities to the management with department heads
responsible for different aspects of the business. The non-executive
Directors serve the relevant function of bringing independent
judgment on the development, performance and risk management
of the Group through their contributions in board meetings. They are
also serving on remuneration committee, nomination committee and
audit committee.

During the year, the Board complies with the requirement of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors and at least one of them has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The independent non-executive
Directors do not hold any management position in the Group. The
Company has received from each independent non-executive Director
an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and the Company considers all the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.
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The Board normally has four regular meetings a year at quarterly
interval and meets as and when required to discuss the overall
business, development strategy, operations and financial reporting
of the Company. The Directors can attend meetings in person or
through other means of electronic communication in accordance
with the Company’s articles of association. During the year ended
31 December 2021, five Board meetings and one general meeting
were held. The following table shows the attendance of individual
Directors at the meetings held during the year:

No. of attendance

General Board
Members meetings meetings
Executive Directors
Mr. Zhuang Yuejin 0/1 5/5
Mr. Wong Ho Yin 11 5/5
Ms. Xiao Suni 01 5/5
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Mak Wai Ho 01 3/5
Ms. Ng Li La, Adeline 01 3/5
Ms. Zhu Chunyan 0/1 3/5

The Directors will receive details of agenda and minutes of committee
meetings in advance of and after each Board meeting respectively.
The company secretary will distribute relevant documents to the
Directors in a timely manner to enable the Directors to make
informed decisions on matters to be raised at the Board meetings.
All Directors have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary who is responsible for ensuring the procedures of the Board
meetings are complied with and advising the Board on compliance
matters.

In addition, the Company has maintained a procedure for the
Directors to seek independent professional advice, in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense in discharging their duties
to the Company. Moreover, the company secretary prepares minutes
of the Board meetings and keeps records of matters discussed and
decisions resolved at all Board meetings. The company secretary
also keeps the minutes of the Board meetings, which are open
for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

Mr. Zhuang Yuejin is the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company. Such deviation from Code provision A.2.1 is deemed
appropriate as it is considered to be more efficient to have one single
person as the Chairman of the Company as well as to discharge the
executive functions of a chief executive officer, and it provides the
Group with strong and consistent leadership in the development
and execution of long-term business strategies. The Board believes
that the balance of power and authority is adequately ensured by
the operations of the Board which comprises highly experienced
individuals. There are three independent non-executive Directors on
the Board. All of them possess adequate independence and therefore
the Board considers the Company has achieved balance and provided
sufficient protection of its interests.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL

According to the Company’s articles of association, one-third of the
Directors are required to retire from office at each annual general
meeting, provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once in every three years. A Director appointed
since the most recent annual general meeting shall hold office
only until the next general meeting and shall then be eligible for
re-election. The independent non-executive Directors were appointed
at specific terms for one year.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to Code provision A.6.5, all Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. All the Directors
also understand the importance of continuous professional
development and are committed to participate any suitable training
or read relevant materials in order to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company has received from each Director
a confirmation of their participation in continuous professional
development by attending training course or reading relevant
materials on the topics related to corporate governance and
regulations.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company adopted a board diversity policy setting out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board and maintain an
appropriate balance of diversity properties of the Board that are
relevant to the business growth of the Company. The Company
considered diversity of board members can be achieved through
consideration of a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of services. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of services. The ultimate decision will be made upon the
merits and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

At the date of this report, the composition of the Board under
diversified perspectives was summarized as follows:

Executive Directors
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee on
13 September 2010 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the Code. The primary duties of the remuneration committee
include making recommendations to the Board on the policy and
structure for all Directors and senior management, reviewing and
making recommendations to the Board on the terms of remuneration
packages, determining the award of bonuses and considering the
grant of options under the share option scheme of the Company.
At 31 December 2021, the remuneration committee comprises one
executive Director, namely, Mr. Zhuang Yuejin and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Mak Wai Ho (chairman of the
remuneration committee) and Ms. Zhu Chunyan.

During the year, two meetings was held by the remuneration
committee to discuss, among other things, the remuneration policy
of the Group and determine the remuneration of the Directors. The
following table shows the attendance of individual members at the
meetings held during the year:

Members No. of attendance
Executive Director

Mr. Zhuang Yuejin 2/2
Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Mak Wai Ho 2/2
Ms. Zhu Chunyan 2/2
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee on
13 September 2010 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the Code. The primary duties of the nomination committee
include reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board,
making recommendations to the Board regarding candidates to fill
vacancies on the Board, assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors and making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors. In reviewing and accessing the composition
of the Board and the nomination of Directors, Board diversity
has to be considered through a number of aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of services.
The nomination committee comprises one executive Director, namely
Mr. Zhuang Yuejin (chairman of the nomination committee), and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Mak Wai Ho and
Ms. Ng Li La, Adeline.

During the year, two meetings was held by the nomination
committee to, among other things, review the structure, size
and composition of the Board and assess the independence of
independent non-executive Directors and make recommendations
to the Board on the re-appointment of Directors. The nomination
committee also reviewed the board diversity policy to ensure its
effectiveness and considered the Group achieved the policy since its
adoption. The following table shows the attendance of individual
members at the meeting held during the year:

Members No. of attendance
Executive Director

Mr. Zhuang Yuejin 2/2
Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Mak Wai Ho 2/2
Ms. Ng Li La, Adeline 0/2
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee on 13 September
2010 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing
Rules. At 31 December 2021, the audit committee comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Mak Wai
Ho (chairman of the audit committee), Ms. Ng Li La, Adeline and
Ms. Zhu Chunyan.

During the year, two meetings were held by the audit committee.
The following table shows the attendance of individual members at
the meetings held during the year:

Members No. of attendance
Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Mak Wai Ho 2/2
Ms. Ng Li La, Adeline 2/2
Ms. Zhu Chunyan 2/2

During the year, the audit committee, among other things, reviewed
the interim and annual reports as well as result announcements
before submission to the Board. The audit committee focuses
not only on the impact of the changes in accounting policies and
practices but also on the compliance with accounting standards, the
Listing Rules and the legal requirements in review of the Company’s
interim and annual reports as well as result announcements. The
audit committee also reviewed the Company’s financial controls, risk
management and internal control systems and make recommendation
to the Board on the re-appointment of the external auditors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
Code provision D.3.1.

The Board reviewed the Company's corporate governance policies
and practices, continuous professional development of Directors,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Listing Rules, and
the Company's compliance with the Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The audit committee is responsible for considering the appointment
of the external auditors and also reviews any non-audit functions
performed by the external auditors for the Group, including whether
such non-audit functions could lead to any potential material adverse
effect on the Group. During the year, the auditors performed the
work of statutory audit for the year of 2021. For the year ended
31 December 2021, the remuneration payable and paid to the
auditors were as follows:

Audit services EIZRTE
RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, maintaining sound and
effective risk management and internal control systems and reviewing
their effectiveness to safeguard the Group's assets.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage, rather than eliminate business risk; to help safeguard the
Group’s assets against fraud and other irregularities; and to give
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material financial
misstatement or loss.

The Board, through the audit committee, has reviewed the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems, covering financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions, which included the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of
the accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget.

The Company has taken appropriate measures to identify inside
information and preserve its confidentiality until proper dissemination
via the electronic publication system operated by the Stock Exchange.
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The Company has engaged an external professional consultant to
conduct independent internal control review for the year ended
31 December 2021. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Board considered the Group's internal control system as adequate
and effective and that the Company has complied with the code
provisions on risk management and internal control as set out in the
Code.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company assists the Board by ensuring
good information flow within the Board and that Board policy and
procedures are followed. The company secretary is also responsible
for advising the Board on governance matters. As an employee of the
Company, Mr. Wong Ho Yin, the company secretary of the Company,
has undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training to update his skills and knowledge in 2021.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Procedure for nominating a new Director

Pursuant to Article 83(2) of the articles of association of the
Company (the "Articles”), subject to the Articles and the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands, the Company may by ordinary resolution
elect any person to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the
Board, or as an addition to the existing Board.

Procedure for convening an extraordinary
general meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more shareholder
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition and such meeting shall be held
within 2 months from the date of deposit of the requisition. If within
twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedure for sending enquires to the Board

Shareholders may send written enquiries or requests in respect of
their rights to the principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong and for the attention of the Company Secretary.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has established a range of communication channels
between itself and its shareholders, and investors. These include the
publication of annual and interim reports, notices, announcements,
circulars and constitutional documents, the Company’s website at
www.hklistco.com/48 and meetings with investors and analysts.

The Company encourages all shareholders to attend the annual
general meeting to stay informed of the Group's strategy and goals.
It provides an opportunity for direct communication between the
Board and its shareholders. The chairman of the meeting explains
the detailed procedures for conducting a poll and then answers any
questions from shareholders. The poll results are published on the
website of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Board does not aware of any changes in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021,
which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group.
The auditors of the Company is responsible to form an independent
opinion based on the audit, on the financial statements prepared by
the Directors and report the opinion solely to the shareholders of the
Company.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale
of nonwoven fabric related products used in automotive interior
decoration parts and other parts, and the trading of rubber and food
products.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 is set out in “Chairman’s Statement & Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 4 to 11 of this report.

RESULTS AND FINANCIAL POSITION

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2021 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 46 and 47 of this report.

The state of affairs of the Group and of the Company at 31 December
2021 are set out in the consolidated statement of financial position and
the statement of financial position on pages 48 to 49 of this report and
in Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set
out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in Note 20 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of financial results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group are set out in the section headed “Summary of Financial
Information” on page 152 of this report.

RESERVES

The movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2021 are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 50 of this report. The movements in the
reserves of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2021
are set out in Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2021, the Company's reserve available for
distribution to owners of the Company comprising share premium
account amounted to approximately RMBNil (2020: RMBNil).
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The board of directors of the Company established a dividend policy
(the “Dividend Policy”) in January 2019. The Company endeavours
to maintain adequate working capital to develop and operate the
business of the Group and to provide stable and sustainable returns
to the shareholders of the Company.

In considering the payment of dividends, the Board shall take into
account, among other things, the actual and expected financial
performance of the Group, the capital and debt level of the Group,
the general market conditions, any working capital requirements,
capital expenditure requirements and future development plans of
the Group, the liquidity position of the Group, contractual restrictions
on payment of dividends, the statutory and regulatory restrictions
which the Group is subject to from time to time and any other
relevant factors that the Board may consider relevant.

The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
distribution ratio. The Company’s dividend distribution record in the
past does not necessarily imply that the similar level of dividends may
be declared or paid by the Company in the future.

The declaration and payment of dividend by the Company is subject
to any restrictions under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
and the Company’s articles of association and any other applicable
laws and regulations. The Board will continually review the Dividend
Policy and reserve the right in its sole and absolute discretion to
update, amend, modify and/or cancel the Dividend Policy at any
time.

The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Group in respect of its future dividend and/or in
no way obligate the Group to declare a dividend at any time or from
time to time.
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DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved not to declare a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year, sales to the Group's five largest customers in aggregate
accounted for approximately 56.4% (2020: 36.3%) of the total
sales for the year and sales to the largest customer accounted
for approximately 30.4% (2020: 11.3%) of total sales. Purchases
from the Group’s five largest suppliers in aggregate accounted for
approximately 49.7% (2020: 31.2%) of total purchases for the year
and purchases from the largest supplier accounted for approximately
32.0% (2020: 15.7%) of total purchases.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders
of the Company (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interest in the Group's five largest customers and suppliers during
the year.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's business, financial condition, results of operations and
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties.
The following are the key risks and uncertainties identified by the
Group.

Reliance on major customers

In the year, sales to the Group's five largest customers in aggregate
accounted for approximately 56.4% (2020: 36.3%) of the total
sales for the year and sales to the largest customer accounted for
approximately 30.4% (2020: 11.3%) of total sales. If any of these
customers ceases to do business with the Group, or substantially
reduces the volume of its business with the Group and if the Group
is unable to secure new customers with similar sales volume and
profit margin, the Group’s business, results of operations and
financial position may be materially and adversely affected.
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Reliance on raw materials

The Group’s production requires large quantities of raw materials,
which are mainly artificial and synthetic fibres, for the production
of nonwoven fabric related products. There is no assurance that
the Group will always be able to secure an adequate supply of raw
materials at commercially viable prices to meet the Group's future
production requirements. Moreover, fluctuations in the prices of the
raw materials may increase the cost of inventories sold and reduce
the gross profit and gross margin of the Group.

Reliance on limited number of suppliers

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers in aggregate
accounted for approximately 49.7% (2020: 31.2%) of total
purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier
accounted for approximately 32.0% (2020: 15.7%) of total
purchases. If any of these suppliers do not continue to supply
materials and goods to the Group at favourable or similar prices or at
all, the Group may not be able to find another suitable replacement
supplier in a timely manner or on terms acceptable to the Group or
at all, and the Group's business, results of operations and financial
condition could be adversely affected.

Other financial risks

The Group also faces other financial risks in the ordinary course of
business. Details of financial risk management objectives and policies
are set out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group recognises the importance of good relationships with
its employees. The Group continues to provide training for its staff
to enhance technical and product knowledge as well as knowledge
of industry quality standards. The Group maintains good working
relationships with its employees and has not experienced any material
disruption of its normal business operations due to strikes or labour
disputes.

The Directors believe that the Group's good relationship with its
customers depends on its ability to produce reliable products for
its customers. The Group conducts surveys on customers’ feedback
on the Group's products, the results of which will be analyzed and
used to formulate measures of improvement. This provides a channel
for the Group’s customers to monitor the quality of the Group’s
products.

30 CHINA AUTOMOTIVE INTERIOR DECORATION HOLDINGS LIMITED

AEENEEFTERERME EPIBRAER
ARESE RIEEEERSMABER MERSE
SR -—ERKBELANTNERESTENEREM
R DENARERROEEF K MIN R
MHERORBDAIRSTFERALATREARAS
BHEMNREFNEK-

HOHHEBWGKRE
AEBRAHERNEBARGAFERELRE
#949.7% (ZE_FF:31.2%) M AEHEFH
RENIREAEN320% (ZE-FF:157%) °
WEMNZEHER T REE N EERELUERR
AEEHERMARER T2 THEE AJXE
EARVERFRUANEEATEZNERDERE
e B EER SR AEEKE B AREEHE
BB EERHBERR A IR E-

H fth Bt 35 = B
AEER-—REBERPTAEEGHERR B
MY KRREEERRBROFBHRNES MBS
R M LG

HES BEFRHEBZERE

AEBRAEEEERFRIBENERE AL
SEREBRMIFI UNaHE 8 TRl kE
mAR AERHTREERENR B AEEEE
BEBAERT ARARRIXGEEM D MBRERAL
—REBES -

EERR AEERAETPFHORIFARIVARER
EFAERREMNREN AEEERTPEHALE
BEMNERETALZ XOMBHELER AR
ERERE - LERAEEEFRHERAEBE
mEZRMNRE-

ANNUAL REPORT 2021



DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
EEERE (&)

The Group’s major suppliers of its principal business are
manufacturers of artificial and synthetic fibers being the Group’s
primary raw materials. The Directors consider that the reliability of
suppliers are essential to maintaining an efficient production process
of the Group. The Group has laid down detailed supplier selection
procedures, and conducts reviews on its suppliers regularly and also
upon any material changes in the suppliers’ delivery period, quality
of supply, price and service.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

Committed to minimizing any environmental impact caused by its
production (such as noise, sewage and exhaust gas), the Group
adopts quality control measures and a comprehensive environmental
management system to ensure that the Group manufactures quality
products with minimum impacts on the environment. Meanwhile,
concerning environmental conservation, the Group follows the
internal guiding principles set out below in operating its business:

o to be committed to complying with relevant laws and
regulations;

o to strengthen the training of staff so that they all participate in
protecting the environment;

o to continuously improve and implement daily environmental
monitoring, review and management so as to prevent pollution;
and

. to economize on the consumption of resources.

Further details will be disclosed in the Company's Environmental,
Social and Governance Report 2021 to be published within five
months of the end of the year ended 31 December 2021.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group work closely with its advisers and auditors to review the
Group's affairs and ensure full compliance with all applicable laws,
rules and regulations. The Group’s operations are mainly carried out
by the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC while the Company itself
is listed on the Stock Exchange. As far as the Company is aware, the
Group has complied in material aspects with the relevant laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2021.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Zhuang Yuejin
Mr. Wong Ho Yin
Ms. Xiao Suni

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Mak Wai Ho
Ms, Ng Li La, Adeline
Ms. Zhu Chunyan

Pursuant to Article 84(1) of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Zhuang Yuejin and Mr, Mak Wai Ho shall retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. All the retiring Directors are
eligible for re-elections.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical information of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are set out in the section headed “Biographical
Information of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 12 to
14 of this report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors, including those proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting, has a service agreement
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Board on the basis of their experience, qualifications and
competence.

The remuneration of the Directors of the Company are reviewed
by the remuneration committee of the Company and approved
by the Board, having regard to the relevant Director's experience,
responsibility, workload and the time devoted to the Group; the
Company'’s operating results and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
on 5 June 2015 to which the Directors and eligible employees,
among others are entitled to participate in. The Company operates
the Scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Details of the Scheme are set out in the section “Share
Option Scheme” on pages 36 to 38 of this report.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest
paid individuals in the Group are set out in Notes 15 and 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

So far as known to the Directors, at 31 December 2021, the interests
and short positions of the Directors and chief executives of the
Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and/or short positions of which they were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of SFO) or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or otherwise required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules (“Model Code”), were as follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares
of the Company

EERTEESME N L HHMH

AEBZzEERTERSHE A THHINFEBS
RIFE T RERME15K%16 °

EERRSTRAERES HER
REEENES

BEEMN R_Z-_—F+_A=+—8 %2
RAIEBERESITHRABRAR A 5 H (F ] 48 8 %
B(ExRBARAEGRO([EHFRBEBKA])
EXVEMARMD HERO REEES HEERE
BHEMBEKROIEXVIBETRSDIBBEMNE AR R
DTSR AR (BEREBEESREEEH
ERABKENEESHEEREE AR TRERS R
FRE)  HIREFES KHE GO E352KE LR
RRAATHEFEESCMANERZRAE  RBE L
TMRAM IO EMBITAESTETEFRINIE
PR ([Z2SF R ) B AR F) KX AT A &
WmEKRBWT

RERBDROREBRG 2F A

Approximate

Number of Number of percentage
Capacity and nature unlisted ordinary of shareholding
Name of interest shares option shares held Total in the Company
EERAT
RKEWE BREZ
HH& B RESNMEE REHE FBEZERHKE st MABDHE
Director
BEF
Zhuang Yuejin Beneficial owner 796,000 14,374,800 15,170,800 9.07%
T B BEnER A
Wong Ho Yin Beneficial owner 796,000 = 796,000 0.48%
wEEN BEnfERA
Xiao Suni Beneficial owner 796,000 - 796,000 0.48%
H &R I BEnfER A
Zhu Chunyan Beneficial owner 796,000 = 796,000 0.48%
KRB EnfER A
FESEAHEEER AR B8
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Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors
or chief executives of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or of any other body corporate granted
to any Directors or their respective spouse or children under 18
years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors, their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age to acquire such rights in the Company
or any body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER

PERSONS’ INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS

IN THE SHARES OR UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests in Securities, Underlying Shares and Debentures” on
page 33 of this report, at 31 December 2021, the Directors of the
Company were not aware of any persons who had, or was deemed
to have, interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company in
accordance with the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO; or be recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTOR’S INTEREST IN COMPETING
INTERESTS

The Directors are not aware of any business or interest of the
Directors, the controlling shareholder and their respective associates
(as defined under the Listing Rules) that compete or may compete
with the business of the Group and any other conflict of interest
which any such person has or may have with the Group during the
year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests in Securities, Underlying Shares and Debentures” on page
33 of this report, at no time during the year was the Company, or
its subsidiaries, or its fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors at the latest practicable
date prior to issue of this report, the Company has maintained the
sufficient public float under the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, except for those disclosed in Note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group had no material
transactions with its related parties.

The Directors conducted review of the related party transactions
of the Group during the year and were not aware any transaction
requiring disclosure of connected transactions in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.
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BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank borrowings of the Group at 31 December 2021
are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Particulars of the retirement benefit scheme of the Group are set out
in Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands which oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing
shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company's articles of association, the Directors and
every one of them is entitled to be indemnified out of the assets
and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which the Directors or any of
them, shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty,
or supposed duty in their offices or otherwise in relation thereto
provided that this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect
of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of the Directors.

The Company has taken out and maintained Directors’ liability
insurance throughout the year which provides appropriate cover for
legal actions brought against the Directors.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Scheme on 5 June 2015 which will
remain in force for a period of 10 years from the effective date of
the Scheme and will expire on 4 June 2025.

Under the Scheme, the Directors may at their discretion grant options
to the eligible participants, including but not limited to, any Directors
(whether executive or non-executive and whether independent or
not) and any employee (whether full time or part time) of the Group
or any other person, who has contributed to the Group.
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The maximum number of shares in respect to which options may
be granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company on the date of adopting the Scheme.
The limit may be refreshed at any time provided that the new limit
must not be in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company at the date of the shareholders’ approval in general
meeting. However, the total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and any other scheme of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares in issue from
time to time. At 31 December 2021 and the date of this report, an
aggregate of 20,720,000 share options granted under the Scheme
remained outstanding, which represented approximately 12.4% of
the issued share capital of the Company. The maximum number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted to any individual
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue
on the last date of such 12-month period unless approval of the
shareholders of the Company has been obtained in accordance with
the Listing Rules. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on
acceptance of the grant of an option.

Options may be exercised at any time from the date of grant of
the option to the 10th anniversary of the date of grant as may be
determined by the Directors. The exercise price is determined by the
Directors, and will not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price
per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
on the date of the grant of the options; (ii) the average closing price
per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of the
grant of the options; or (iii) the nominal value of a share. An option
may be accepted by an eligible participant within 28 days from the
date of the offer of grant of the option.

On 12 May 2021, an aggregate of 7,960,000 share options granted
under the Scheme to the eligible participants and the closing price of
the shares immediately before the date on which the options were
granted was HK$0.59. The fair values of the share options granted
to the eligible participants, which were only the employees of the
Company, were approximately RMB2,218,000.
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The movements in the Company's share options granted to the AERLHEEMERAQNRBREHRZ T =——
eligible participants during the year ended 31 December 2021 were F+ - A=+—HIFEERN2ZFHUT:
as follows

Movement during the year

ERgD
Outstanding at Outstanding at
Exercise price 1 January 31 December
Date of grant HK$ 2021 Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 2021 Exercise period
RZB=-% R-B=-f%
e -A-H t=B=+-8H
RHAH o WA BRI BT BH# BANM AT TES
Category 1:
o
Directors
S
Zhuang Yuejin 15 May 2020 0.425 796,000 - - - - 796,000 15 May 2020 to
[13: 5 “Z-ZFRATEA 14 May 2022
TELATLRAE
- ZFRATMA
Wong Ho Yin 15 May 2020 0.425 796,000 - - - - 796,000 15 May 2020 to
BER —“Z2-FFRATEA 14 May 2022
“Z-RFRATHRE
ZZ-ZERATRA
Xiao Suni 15 May 2020 0.425 796,000 - - - - 796,000 15 May 2020 to
B# e —“Z-FFRA+EA 14 May 2022
“2-RFRATIRE
“E-_#RATMA
Zhu Chunyan 15 May 2020 0.425 796,000 - - - - 796,000 15 May 2020 to
KER —Z-ZFRA+RA 14 May 2022
FEATHAE
ZERAtTmA
Total 3,184,000 - - - - 3,184,000
@z
Category 2:
B
Employees 4 April 2019 2.500 4,800,000 = = = = 4,800,000 4 April 2019 to
3 —Z-NAFEARA 3 April 2029
“Z-N\FMAMAZE
“E-AFMAZA
15 May 2020 0.425 4,776,000 - - - - 4,776,000 15 May 2020 to
it Sk 350 = 14 May 2022
“ZCRERATHERE
—Z--FRAtMA
12 May 2021 0.690 - 7,960,000 - - - 7,960,000 12 May 2021 to
“Z--¥RA+ZH 11 May 2023
R -FRAT-HE
ZE-ZFRAT-H
Total 9,576,000 7,960,000 - - - 17,536,000
@t
Total 12,760,000 7,960,000 - - - 20,720,000
&5t
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AUDITORS

Following the resignation of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
("HLB") as the auditor of the Company on 7 January 2022, Elite
Partners CPA Limited (“Elite Partners”) was appointed as the auditor
of the Company by the Board on the same day and to hold office
until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the
Company.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2021 were audited by Elite Partners whose
terms of office will expire upon the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. A resolution for the re-appointment of
Elite Partners as the auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

The Board confirmed that there was no disagreement between HLB
and the Company. Save as disclosed above, there were no other
changes in auditor of the Company during the past three years.

On behalf of the Board

Zhuang Yuejin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 20 April 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B AR E

elite
parthers

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA AUTOMOTIVE INTERIOR DECORATION HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Automotive Interior Decoration Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 46 to 151, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in a accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained in sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial

HRELSEE

RERMANFEXHE BREZSASRMATER
AHENGEEMBRERTREZNFTR -RMAESE
REEMBRR (BEMEF) LR ERE LR
BHEEHE MIAERLEETRERRRER -

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter
Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment
Refer to note 18 of the consolidated financial statements.

As of 31 December 2021, the Group had property, plant and
equipment of approximately RMB40,870,000, which mainly
comprised buildings of approximately RMB4,790,000 and
plant and machinery of approximately RMB33,085,000. A
recent history of losses of the subsidiaries of the Group is an
indicator of impairment of property, plant and equipment
and hence impairment assessment is required.
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RESEANHEEASE A

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of
property, plant and equipment included:

o Evaluating the independent valuer’s independent,
competence, capabilities and objectivity;

o Assessing the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumption based on our
knowledge of the relevant industry and using our
valuation experts;

o Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions
based on our knowledge of the business and

industry; and

o Checking, on a sampling basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used.
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Allowance for expected credit losses assessment of trade receivables

Refer to note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had gross trade
receivables of approximately RMB166,098,000 and provision
for impairment of approximately RMB14,021,000.

In general, the credit terms granted by the Group to the
customers ranged between 30 to 120 days. Management
performed periodic assessment on the recoverability of
the trade receivables and the sufficiency of provision for
impairment based on information including credit profile
of different customers, ageing of the trade receivables,
historical settlement records, subsequent settlement status,
expected timing and amount of realisation of outstanding
balances, and on-going trading relationships with the
relevant customers. Management also considered forward-
looking information that may impact the customers’ ability
to repay the outstanding balances in order to estimate the
expected credit losses for the impairment assessment.

We focused on this area due to the impairment assessment
of trade receivables under the expected credit losses model
involved the use of significant management judgements and
estimates.
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Our procedures in relation to allowance for expected
credit assessment of trade receivables as at 31 December
2021 included:

o Understanding and evaluating the key procedures
that the Group has implemented to manage and
monitor its credit risk;

o Checking the subsequent settlements of trade
receivables balance on a sample basis.

J Inquiring of management for the status of each
of the material trade receivables past due as at
year end and corroborating explanations from
management with supporting evidence; and

o Assessing the appropriateness of the expected
credit loss provisioning methodology, examining the
key date inputs on a sample basis to assess their
accuracy and completeness, and challenging the
assumptions, including both historical and forward-
looking information, used to determine the expected
credit losses.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (Continued)
BYRBETRE (&)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
and auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
term of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exits. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risk, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing and
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (Continued)
BYRBETRE (&)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent

auditor’s report is Mr. Leung Man Kin with Practising Certificate
number P07174.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20 April 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEREsEREMEEHKRER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—F——Ff - H=+—HIFFZ

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other gains or losses

Selling and distribution costs

Share of result of associates

Net allowance for expected credit losses
Administrative expenses

Profit/(Loss) from operations
Finance costs

Loss before tax
Income tax (expense)/credit

Loss for the year attributable to
the owners of the Company

e A

&R

EM

H e zd s B 18

HE R D HKA

i 2l R WNCIE i
EREEERREFR
TTHRAX

REEF (BE)
B E R

BB ATE R
Pristt () /%

FRAAFEEABEFERR

CHINA AUTOMOTIVE INTERIOR DECORATION HOLDINGS LIMITED

2021 2020
—E-—F —ECIETF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bz AR¥ TR ARET T
9 181,701 141,626
(157,662) (128,141)
24,039 13,485
10 7,318 5,872
(5,958) (4,014)
330 2,622
(478) (6,097)
(23,567) (15,681)
11 1,684 (3,813)
12 (1,859) (2,473)
(175) (6,286)
13 (235) 2,396
(410) (3,890)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)
RERBENREMEERER (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
FE A=+ —HILFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ECIETF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

iog=3 AR®TR ARMETT

Loss for the year FEBSE (410) (3,890)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FEHMZE (BB Wi

for the year, net of income tax: MRS Hi %
Item that will not be reclassified to FTEEHPBEEERNER:

profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation RENEEEEZZHEK 2

from functional currency to N =5

presentation currency (2,049) (3,299)
Item that may be reclassified HeEEmsBEBEEMWER:

subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating MEBINEB ZIEN E58

foreign operations (4,937) 788
Total other comprehensive loss FEHMNZEERASE

for the year (6,986) (2,511)

Total comprehensive loss for the year EAREEAELEE

attributable to the owners of 2HEBLE
the Company (7,.396) (6,401)
RMB RMB
AR#E AR
Loss per share BREE
Basic and diluted —BEARNEE 14 (0.29) cents & (4.6) cents 7
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B MR R

As at 31 December 2021
R-ZFEZ—F+=ZH=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—F T
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

iog=3 AR®TR ARMETT

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment S EN Y ] 18 40,870 44,382
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 19 6,706 8,551
Interests in associates REEE QR ER 21 13,840 13,714
Deferred tax assets BEREERE 34 3,905 3,943
65,321 70,590
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 22 30,593 31,183
Trade receivables EWE 5 IE 23 152,077 128,612
Bills receivables FEUW & 3,921 6,783
Prepayments, deposits and ERRIE -me Rk
other receivables H th i SR IR 24 29,242 24,174
Financial assets at fair value through BEAFEREBERIEN
profit or loss SEEE 25 38,105 27,142
Cash and bank balances Be RIRITE R 26 24,583 26,820
278,521 244,714
Total assets EEHE 343,842 315,304
EQUITY Ex
Capital and reserves attributable to the ZEATEBEABEELRFE
owners of the Company
Share capital [N 27 3,476 1,984
Reserves 1 28 186,232 174,080
Total equity EREE 189,708 176,064
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

mEMBRRE (F)

As at 31 December 2021
R-ZFEZ—F+=ZH=+—H

LIABILITIES
Non-current liability
Lease liabilities

Current liabilities
Trade payables
Accruals and other payables
Contract liabilities
Bank borrowings
Lease liabilities
Tax payable

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Net assets

Approved by the Board of Directors on 20 April 2022 and signed on

its behalf by:

Zhuang Yuejin
HBE
Director

EF

2021 2020
—E-—F —ECIETF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
Bz ARET T ARET T
8&
ERBERE
HESR 33 2,180 3,727
2,180 3,727
FEBaE
FETE 5 5RIR 29 40,594 25,802
FEETE R R E A E KA 30 13,324 11,408
BHEE 31 30,007 20,110
RITER 32 30,000 40,000
HEBE 33 2,728 2,608
FEATBEIR 35,301 35,585
151,954 135,513
BEHAE 154,134 139,240
EERaEARE 343,842 315,304
RBEEFSE 126,567 109,201
HEERRBEMRE 191,888 179,791
EEFRHE 189,708 176,064

R-ZE-_—FNA-_t+HBEESESHETH 5

AERERE:

Wong Ho Yin
EER
Director

EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEREEER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—F——Ff - H=+—HIFFZ

Convertible Foreign Retained
bond-equity currency Share profits/
Share Share Merger component translation option Statutory  (Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses) equity
TRRES - REEH/
Bx RiER AR BETARE  JMAHERE RRRRER EERE (BitER) RHE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARBTT ARETT
(Note 26) (Note 26) (Note 28) (Note 41) (Note 26)
(#:28) ) (#328) (#za1) (Hit28)
At 1 January 2020 H-Z-Z35-7-8 163,359 137,996 5992 = 39,400 18,117 11,818 (200,569) 176,113
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - - (3,890) (3,890)
Exchange difference on translating functional PV CEFEY LY
currency to presentation currency EREE - - - - (3,299) - - = (3,299)
Exchange difference on translating BEBNEHZ ENER
foreign operations - - - - 788 - - - 788
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEAEFALE - - - - (2511 - - (3.890) (6,401)
Share based payment expenses RFAAR - - - - - 1,002 - = 1,002
Transfer of share option reserve upon BREZAREEBREGE
the lapse of share options - - - - - (15,251) - 15,251 -
Capital reduction BAE]E (161,725) 161,725 = = = B = = =
Issue of convertible bonds BUaRES - - - 2,559 - - - - 2,559
Issue of shares upon conversion BATERRAREIRG
of convertible bond 35 5,000 - (2,137) - - - - 3213
Initial recognition of deferred tax liabilties from convertiole bond 14 B2 AR A HERLH AR & - - = (422) - - - - (422)
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021
1,984 304,721 5992 - 36,889 3,868 11,818 (189,208) 176,064
Loss for the year FEEE - - - - - - - (410) (410)
Exchange difference on translating functional PV CESED LY
currency to presentation currency EiZE - - = = (2,049 = = S (2,049)
Exchange difference on translating REBNEHZENZR
foreign operations - - - - (4937) - - - (4.937)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEAAFALE - - - - (6,986) - - (410) (7,39)
Share based payment expenses BHFRER - - - - - 2218 - - 2218
Issue of share upon placing REEREARHG 1492 17,330 - - - - = = 18,822
At 31 December 2021 RZB=-F+-f=1-B 3,476 322,051 5992 = 29,903 6,086 11818 (189,618) 189,708
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
BEMTEO I st A2 S hr & MBS MR AR 5 ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

MEREMRER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—F——Ff - H=+—HIFFZ

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax
Adjustments for:
Interest expenses
Interest income
(Reversal of allowance)/allowance for
expected credit losses on
trade receivables
Allowance/(reversal of allowance)
for expected credit losses on
other receivables
Write-down of inventories
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Depreciation on right-of-use assets

Fair value (gain)/loss on financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss
Share of results of associates
Realised gain on disposal of financial
assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Share-based payment expenses
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Operating cash flow before investments in

working capital changes
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
Increase in trade receivables
Decrease in bills receivables
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments,

deposits and other receivables
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables
Increase/(decrease) in accruals and

other payables
Increase in contract liabilities
Purchase of financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss

Net cash generated from operations
Income taxes (paid)/refund

Net cash generated from
operating activities
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2021 2020
—E- T
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARET T
(175) (6,286)
1,859 2,473
(32) (37)
(2,355) 7,283
2,833 (1,186)
752 493
6,434 6,058
2,842 2,238
(2,612) (2,518)
(330) (2,622)
(3,594) =
2,218 1,002
167 12
8,007 6,910
(162) 923
(21,111) (12,638)
2,862 586
(7,901) 15,330
14,792 (4,761)
1,917 (5,874)
9,897 4,024
(14,149) (2,866)
8,361 =
2,513 1,634
(441) 294
2,072 1,928
B8



The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

RERTRER (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—F——Ff - H=+—HIFFZ

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Interest received
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from borrowings
Proceeds from issue of shares upon placing
Repayment of borrowings
Repayment of interest on borrowings
Repayment of capital element of
lease liabilities
Repayment of interest on lease liabilities
Repayment of interest on convertible bonds
Issue of convertible bonds

Net cash generated from financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year

Effect of foreign currency exchange
rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at
the end of the year
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CHINA AUTOMOTIVE INTERIOR DECORATION HOLDINGS LIMITED

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREF T
32 37
(3.117) (292)

2 —
(3,083) (255)
30,000 56,000
18,822 =
(40,000) (56,000)
(1,523) (1,911)
(2,578) (2,095)
(336) (283)
= (279)

= 5,391

4,385 823
3,374 2,496
26,820 26,101
(5.611) (1,777)
24,583 26,820
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A M AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE—

1.

—— A=+ —HILFE
GENERAL INFORMATION

China Automotive Interior Decoration Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was a public limited company incorporated in
Cayman Islands on 9 December 2009 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law (2000 Revision)
of the Cayman lIslands, and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Its ultimate controlling party
is Mr. Zhuang Yuejin, who is also the Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company. The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the corporate information section to the annual report.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and
sale of nonwoven fabric related products used in automotive
interior decoration parts and other parts, trading of rubber and
food products.

The Company’s functional currency is Hong Kong dollars
("HKD"). However, the consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), as the directors of the
Company consider that RMB is the functional currency of
the primary economic environment in which most of the
Group’s transactions are denominated and settled in and
this presentation is more useful for its current and potential
investors. The consolidated of financial statements are
presented in thousands of Renminbi (“RMB’000"), unless
otherwise stated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBRRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—F——Ff - H=+—HIFFZ

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

2.1 Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current
year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for
the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, Reform — Phase 2
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

CHINA AUTOMOTIVE INTERIOR DECORATION HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBRRMEE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—F——Ff - H=+—HIFFZ

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

2.2 New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendment to HKAS 1 &

HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Insurance Contracts and the related Amendments
Reference to the Conceptual Framework

COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond
30 June 2021

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds
before Intended Use

Definition of Accounting Estimates

Income Taxes - Deferred Tax Related to Assets and
Liabilities Arising from a Single Transaction
Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018 - 2020

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Effective for

annual periods
beginning on or

after

1 January 2023

1 January 2022

1 April 2021

A date to be

determined

1 January 2023

1 January 2022

1 January 2023

1 January 2023

1 January 2022

1 January 2022

1 January 2023

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
mentioned below, the Directors anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs
will not have material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBRERME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—F——Ff - H=+—HIFFZ

56

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERAHITIRKETEEBMBER
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG HEA ([EEMBHREELN])
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (%)

("HKFRSs") (Continued)
2.2 New and amendments to HKFRSs in 2.2 CHEMGEMKRERZHITREE
issue but not yet effective (Continued) AEBUMKRERER (£)
(a) Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19- (a) HEEBHBHEEZERFE6
Related Rent Concessions beyond HHEE  —BE=—FANAH
30 June 2021 E+HENEBREZERENH
Bz nE

The amendment extends the time limit in one of
the qualifying criteria of the practical expedient
for COVID-19-related rent concessions from
30 June 2021 to 30 June 2022. As such, the use
of the practical expedient is available to more rent
concessions, in particular those involving reduction
in lease payments originally due after 30 June 2021
but before 30 June 2022.

A lessee is required to apply the amendments
retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of
initially applying the amendment recognised as an
adjustment to the opening balance of equity at the
beginning of the annual reporting period. Lessees
that had elected to apply the practical expedient in
their previous financial statements are required to
apply the extension to eligible contracts with similar
characteristics and in similar circumstances.

The application is not expected to have impact on
the Group's financial position and performance as
the Group does not intend to apply the practical
expedient.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBRERME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2021
FE A=+ —HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERAFITRKEITEBHER
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG HEER([EBHHEREED])
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (%)

("HKFRSs") (Continued)
2.2 New and amendments to HKFRSs in 2.2 EEMAEMKRERZHTREE
issue but not yet effective (Continued) AEBUMKRERER (£)

(b) Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification (b) BEEEERFE1HZ 15T
of Liabilities as Current or Non-current AEEEDBERGELHT
and related amendments to Hong Kong BURBEEZREESY (=
Interpretation 5 (2020) E_ZFF)2EFEIEET
The amendments provide clarification and ZEBI AR ERE B ERET
additional guidance on the assessment of right to ExPT_HAZEESERR
defer settlement for at least twelve months from ol IEm B B ERAEE REEI
reporting date for classification of liabilities as a5l B

current or non-current, which:

e specify that the classification of liabilities as . FABEEENRREHR
current or non-current should be based on BHEZERMD B ARE
rights that are in existence at the end of the IR AEME  ZF
reporting period. Specifically, the amendments BRI AEE
clarify that:

(i) the classification should not be () ZPEITXERE®R
affected by management intentions or NREARNZEREAEZ
expectations to settle the liability within BEETEHTE:
12 months; and 54

(i) if the right is conditional on the (i) fWZENEETRZF
compliance with covenants, the right A G BN fE
exists if the conditions are met at the ATE&R % B H 758 &
end of the reporting period, even if the TEREGEY Z#E
lender does not test compliance until a MREFJEBRRD
later date; and REBGME2BERTF

£ &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBRERME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—F——Ff - H=+—HIFFZ

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. BAFITREEITEEBUKE
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG HEN([EEYHREED])
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (%)

("HKFRSs") (Continued)
2.2 New and amendments to HKFRSs in 22 EEMBEERERZHITREE
issue but not yet effective (Continued) AEBUMKRERER (£)

(b) Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification (b) BBEEREIFZIEET
of Liabilities as Current or Non-current rEEETEB B IR
and related amendments to Hong Kong BUREEBZEESH (=
Interpretation 5 (2020) (Continued) E_EF)2BEMBIEET (&)
o clarify that if a liability has terms that could, . HiEimBEEBGKK ATH

at the option of the counterparty, result in its HFHTEERFREZRER
settlement by the transfer of the entity's own RS TAETHEE
equity instruments, these terms do not affect AEEEREAT BT
its classification as current or non-current only LRIENHReHMITE: 25
if the entity recognises the option separately HEESFBERRSERL
as an equity instrument applying HKAS 32 B ZEGRRAT8HH
Financial Instruments: Presentation. 58RO B 3 3 R B A K
B
In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised Uboh R EB S EAE IR
as a consequence of the Amendments to HKAS 1 to BIR BEEREESHE LB
align the corresponding wordings with no change B EEEERRS —BAS
in conclusion. S o
Based on the Group's outstanding liabilities as BEAEBRR=_ZT=_—F+=A
at 31 December 2021, the application of the “t+t—HzHKREEEBE %ZF
amendments will not result in reclassification of the B ZEABTEERAEE
Group’s liabilities. BEBAEFHHE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs, which is a collective term
that includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“"HKICPA"), and accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong. For the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements, information is considered material if
such information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or
a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of
the asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability
at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial statements
is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-
based Payment”, leasing transactions that are accounted for
in accordance with HKFRS 16 “Lease”, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use
in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBRERME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—F——Ff - H=+—HIFFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REVBBRRNEREE (&)
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value o R BREMS A FEFERER
measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the FEFENEABEABERIEE R ARE
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are HAFEFENEREZUSERF IR B
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value 2B Fa AT

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active e FIZWMABREBEIREBRNIEAHAT
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity RS EREER B ENERT IS
can access at the measurement date; WE (CREARE)

0 Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices . F2RMASBEREHEELBBEERZL
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset MEMABEROHASE (Z1R/ANE
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and FEHRERIN) - R

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or . FIMMAHBBREEEXBENTAE
liability. R ABIE o

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FTESHHE

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation FEZEREVBRREAZEZEGHBER

of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. IO T - BREEFTAEI ZEWEEMN

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years 2 BFEENERER-

presented, vales otherwise stated.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company has power over the investee; is exposed, or has rights
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specially, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities)
over which the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for
the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group which qualifies
as business combination, except for those acquisitions which
qualify as a common control combination and are therefore
accounted for using the merger accounting.

Under the purchase method of accounting, subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that
control ceases. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the
fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and
liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange and,
all acquisition-related costs are expensed. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over
the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If this is less than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the consolidated statements
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Separate financial statements (Continued)

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee's net assets including
goodwill.

Investment in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over these policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting.

The financial statements of associates used for equity
amounting purposes are prepared using uniform amounting
policies as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances.

Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate. When the Group’s share of losses of
an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate,
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

64

(Continued)
Investment in associates (Continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is objective evidence that
the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the requirements of HKAS 36 are
applied to determine whether it is necessary to recognize any
impairment loss with respect to the Group's investment in an
associate. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill, if any) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less cost of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits or losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group's consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate that
are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good (or a bundle of

goods) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods that are
substantially the same.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group's performance as the
Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

° the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligation, the Group allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined at
contract inception. It represents the price at which the Group
would sell a promised good or service separately to a customer.
If a stand-alone selling price is not directly observable, the
Group estimates it using appropriate techniques such that
the transaction price ultimately allocated to any performance
obligation reflects the amount of consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the
promised goods or services to the customer.

FESEAMKESR AR

4.

TESHERR (&

WAER (&)

fisl & 75 & DA TS H AR — G 4 - 12 6l 4 BE B 1
ERmMRARBTXABBBENETHEERE
B RERR

. EFRABKILERAEERTEL
BT 20 R B 2 -

e XEFEHNTEAORMAZRERENRTP
PRIR IR EE 3k

e ARERORRAARHASEAHE
AENEE MAKEREZSETEK
B B 49 ¥ 7 T 98 Bl 1T MO WRSRAE ) o

TR WATEE RIS O R P 12 A
B 5 P B R -

AHNABEAEEEE AR EmARBES
EXP MASEEREP KWARE (HK
K2

HREFBE-—HENEENGAME &%
ERAHBEYEBEESRRENEERRE
MEME-

BEEBEHNAETHBANAEERLRENES
EETNRANTURETE BASEEBZE
FHEMBIRBETELPNER -WEEE
BEEREREE AREEREERTET
e MERSPEEENBNEENRZE
RERRASERMEBEXEFHEERARE T
BEPORZHPAEBRHRESE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBRRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—F——Ff - H=+—HIFFZ

4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Sale of goods

Manufacture and sale of nonwoven fabric related
products and supply and procurement operation

Revenue from manufacture and sale of nonwoven fabric
related products and supply and procurement operation are
recognised when control of the products has transferred, being
at the point the products are delivered to the customer and the
customer has accepted the products, and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of
the products. Delivery occurs when the products have been
shipped to the specified location, the risks of obsolescence
and loss have been transferred to the customer, and either the
customer has accepted the products in accordance with the
sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the
Group has objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance
have been satisfied.

Revenue from these sales is recognised based on the price
specified in the contract, net of discounts, returns and value
added taxes.

A receivable is recognised when the products are delivered
and the customers accept the products, as this is the point in
time that the consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is due. The
normal credit term is 30 to 120 days upon delivery. Payment is
advance is required for some contracts.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application of HKFRS 16 or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed. As a
practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics are
accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group reasonably
expects that the effects on the consolidated financial
statements would not differ materially from individual leases
within the portfolio.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the
lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components, including contract for acquisition of
ownership interests of a property which includes both leasehold
land and non-lease building components, unless such allocation
cannot be made reliably.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of office premise that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. Lease payments on short-term leases are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the leases term.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FESHBEK (&

(Continued)

Leases (Continued) HneE (&)

As a lessee (Continued) ERARBEAN (&)

Right-of-use assets RHERE

The cost of right-of-use asset includes: FRAEEENKRNELE:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease . HEBEBENYZTEeE:
liability;

0 any lease payments made at or before the . REAB BB AN ERENEEN
commencement date, less any lease incentives received; FOREMBERREERE:

. any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and . REBMEAENEMIBEERS: &

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in . REBRIFREBHREBEEE BERA
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring Tt EREBEEZEHE KRR
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying {6 15 BT A8 FE O AR BE T BE A MO K AR (i T o

asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated FREEERKAREMNRFITE RAES
depreciation and impairment losses and adjusted for any BiE YHEEAENEAENRGFEED
remeasurement of lease liabilities, other than adjustments HE ETABIERACOVID-19HERESER
to lease liabilities resulting from COVID-19-related rent BEYMHEEAERAE EhHBEAT A&E
concessions in which the Group applied the practical expedient. FERERERE-
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
As a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term is depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable; and

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date.
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4.

70

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
As a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review or expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FESHBEK (£F)
(Continued)
Leases (Continued) HneE (&)
As a lessee (Continued) ERRHBA (£)
COVID-19-related rent concessions FEAE K RIS £ B
In related to rent concessions that occurred as a direct RAFEMAZBEEREENHEESER
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has ME ANEBECERTRE NI MB GER
elected to apply the practical expedient not to assess whether EARTREAETTHEEEHRE R —
the change is a lease modification if all of the following HHEEEN:

conditions are met:

e the change in lease payments results in revised . HENREHER 2 HE 2 LEFTR
consideration for the lease that is substantially the EHEZEH ZAMNBEEREELNE
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease RS ERZKE

immediately preceding the change;

0 any reduction in lease payments affects only payments . HENRZEMRIEZERR_-_Z

originally due one or before 30 June 2021; and Z—FRNA=TBRZAR AR
54

e there is no substantive change to other terms and . HEMEMGERERGHETEEEHE
conditions of the lease. &o

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for changes ERATHEERNEZEECEREH 2 HEN

in lease payments resulting from rent concessions the same HEFHIRZABABUBA-—FXAKERS

way it would account for the change applying HKFRS 16 if the B BHREEANEZIRNEB AR (WEH

changes are not a lease modification. Forgiveness or wavier of WHBEEEET) HENRKRZERKARE

lease payments are accounted for as variable lease payments. ARIMEREHEN R - HHEHEREBEESA

The related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts BUARBMESK AR 2R WRZEHE

forgiven or waived with a corresponding adjustment recognised AN E R EREERE -

in the profit or loss in the reporting period in which the event

occurs.
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4.

72

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
As a lessee (Continued)
Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease
if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

° the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-
of-use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income in the period in which it
is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated
that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the
property, plant and equipment, the expenditure is capitalised as
an additional cost of that asset.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets”
in consolidated statement of financial position. When the
consideration cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease
building element and undivided interest in the underlying
leasehold land, the entire properties are classified as property,
plant and equipment.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property, plant
and equipment, using the straight line method, over their
estimated useful lives. The principal useful lives are as follows:

Building 30 years
Plant and machinery 12 years
Motor vehicles 8 years
Furniture and fixtures 6 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years

The useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate amounted for on a
prospective basis.
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4.

74

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average basis.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
all production overhead expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. New realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in ordinary course of business less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make
the sale. Costs necessary to make the sale include incremental
costs directly attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs
which the Group must incur to make the sale.

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets other
than goodwiill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating units (the “CGU”) to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual CGU, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets other
than goodwiill (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
(if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to
the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to the revised
estimated of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a CGU) in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that
are never taxable and deductible. The Group's liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of the
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attribute to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to application of the
initial recognition exemption.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivable arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL") are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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78

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial recognition of a financial
asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither held
for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business
Combinations” applies.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised
cost. Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI
are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other gains” line item.

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit losses (“ECL"”) model on financial assets which are
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (including
trade receivables, bill receivables, deposit and other receivables,
and cash and bank balances). The amount of ECL is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting period.
Assessment are done based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast
of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
without significant financial component. The ECL on these
assets are assessed individually for debtors with significant
balances and collectively using a provision matrix with
appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in
which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment
of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting period with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of
default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of
trade receivables, when the amounts are over 180 days past
due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is based on
historical data and forward-looking information. Estimation of
ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default occurring as
the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

For collective assessment the Group takes into consideration
the following characteristics when formulating the grouping:

° Past-due status;
° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar credit
risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit
impaired, in which case interest income is calculated based on
amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade and other receivables
where the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a
loss allowance account.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risk and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as liabilities or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including bank borrowings, trade payables,
accruals and other payables) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Convertible loan notes

The component parts of the convertible loan notes are classified
separately as financial liability and equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
A conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of
a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is an equity
instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
(including any embedded non-equity derivatives features) is
estimated by measuring the fair value of similar liability that
does not have an associated equity component.

A conversion option classified as equity is determined by
deducting the amount of the liability component from the
fair value of the compound instrument as a whole. This
is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax
effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity until
the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred to share premium.
Where the conversion option remains unexercised at the
maturity date of the convertible note, the balance recognised
in equity will be transferred to accumulated losses. No gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration
of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible loan
notes are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component are charged directly
to equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible loan notes using
the effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also
be a present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot
be measured reliably. A contingent liability is not recognised
but is disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow
occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then be recognised
as a provision.

Foreign currencies
i.  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
companies now comprising the Group are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the company operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in
RMB, which is the Company’s presentation currency
and the functional currency of the principal operating
subsidiary of the Group. The functional currency of the
Company is HKD. The directors consider that choosing
Renminbi as the presentation currency best suits the
needs of the shareholders and investors.

ii. Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities are reported as part of their fair value gain
or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

88

iii.

Group companies

The results and financial positions of all the companies
now comprising the Group (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(@) Assets and liabilities are translated at the closing
rate;

(b) Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates; and

(c)  All resulting exchange differences are recognised as
a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations,
and of borrowings and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are taken
to owners’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold,
exchange differences that were recorded in equity are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as part of the gain or
loss on sale.

Exchange differences relating to the retranslation of the
Group's net assets in HKD to the Group's presentation
currency (i.e. RMB) are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in foreign
currency translation reserve. Such exchange differences
accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve
are not reclassified to profit or loss subsequently.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash in hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash
management.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money
is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee benefits

20

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all employees.
Contributions to the schemes by the Group and
employees are calculated as a percentage of employees’
basic salaries. The retirement benefit scheme cost charged
to profit or loss represents contributions payable by the
Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal plan
which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based payment arrangements
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees and others

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date. Details regarding the
determination of the fair value of equity-settled share-based
transactions are set out in Note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting
period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to retained profits/accumulated losses. For share
options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair
value of the share options granted is recognised immediately to
profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

92

(Continued)
Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group's most senior executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group's various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type of class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(1) A person or entity is preparing the financial statements of
the Group;

(2) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group.

(3) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group. If the Group is itself
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (2).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FESHHBE(£Z)

(Continued)
Related parties (Continued)

(3) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(vii) A person identified in (2)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or the Group's parent.

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction
when there is a transfer of resources or obligations between
related parties.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies which are
described in note 4, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (Continued)

Allowance for expect credit losses of trade
and other receivables

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement at amortised cost in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group's past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at the end
of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions and
inputs used are disclosed in note 6.

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are
stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment,
if any. In determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group
has to exercise judgment and make estimation, particularly in
assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators
that may affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value
of an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, in the
case of value in use, the net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use of the
asset; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied
in estimating the recoverable amounts including cash flow
projections and an appropriate discount rate, Changing the
assumptions and estimates, including the discount rates or the
growth rate in the cash flow projections, could materially affect
the net present value used in the impairment test.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are RMB40,870,000 and RMB6,706,000 respectively, no
impairment losses were recognised during the year ended
31 December 2021. Details of the property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are disclosed in notes 18
and 19.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (Continued)

Provision of inventories

The Group makes provision for inventories based on an
assessment of the net realisable value of inventories.
Allowances are applied to inventories where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the net realisable value is lower
than the cost of inventories. The identification of slow-moving
stock and obsolete inventories requires the use of judgement
and estimates on the conditions and usefulness of the
inventories.

Impairment of interests in associates

The management of the Group carries out review on
impairment on the interests in associates whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that its carrying amount may
not be recoverable by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of the value in use and fair value less cost of disposal) with its
carrying amount.

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment. Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the cash generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (Continued)

Impairment of interests in associates
(Continued)

In determining whether the interests in associates is impaired,
it requires an estimation of its recoverable amount, which
represents higher of the value in use and fair value less cost
of disposal (market value). For the value in use, it requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the operations of the investment and from the ultimate
disposal, and a discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the recoverable amount of the Group's interest
in an associate is less than the carrying amount, an impairment
loss may arise.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the management
concluded that there was no impairment loss on interest in
an associate as the recoverable amount of the interest in
associates which represented the value in use was lower than
the carrying amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

6.

(a)

(b)

—— A=+ —HILFE

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets: cREE:
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost

TREE

TERAME:
B

Financial liabilities:
Amortised cost

Financial risk management objectives
and policies

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk and
fair value interest rate risks and price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.

Management regularly manages the financial risks of the
Group. Because of the simplicity of the financial structure
and the current operations of the Group, no major
hedging activities are undertaken by management.

There has been no change to the types of the Group’s
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risks.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk
Foreign currency risk

6.

(i)

(ii)

Exposure to foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) and Hong Kong and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with respect to
Renminbi (“RMB"), Hong Kong dollars (“"HKD") and
United States dollars (“USD"). Foreign exchange
risk arises from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities and net investments
in foreign operations. The management do not
expect the net foreign currency risk from these
activities to be significant and hence, the Group and
the Company do not presently hedge the foreign
exchange risks. The Group and the Company
periodically review liquid assets and liabilities held
in currencies other than the functional currencies
of the respective subsidiaries to evaluate its foreign
exchange risk exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2021, the Group had minimal
exposure to foreign currency risk with respect
to HKD as it is the functional currencies of the
respective subsidiaries in which their business
transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated.
Thus, no sensitivity analysis of HKD is presented.

At 31 December 2021, if USD had strengthened/
weakened by 5% (2020: 5%) against RMB with
all other variables held constant, the Group’s loss
for the year and total equity would have been
approximately RMB668,000 (2020: RMB475,000)
higher/lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on USD-denominated monetary assets
and monetary liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBRERME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_HA=+—HIFFE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk

6.

(i)

(ii)

Exposure to interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in
market interest rate relates primarily to its interest-
bearing bank borrowings. Interest-bearing bank
borrowings at floating rates expose the Group to
interest rate risk.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. However,
the management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2021, if interest rates at the date
had been 100 basis points higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, the Group’s loss for
the year would increase/decrease by RMB300,000
(2020: RMB400,000). This is mainly attributable to
the Group's exposure as result of increase/decrease
in interest expense on bank borrowings net off with
interest income from bank deposits.

Other price risk

(i)

Exposure to other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly
through its investment. The Group currently
does not have a hedging policy in respect of the
risk exposure. In addition, the management of
the Group would monitor the price risk and will
consider hedging the risk exposure should the need
arise.

100 CHINA AUTOMOTIVE INTERIOR DECORATION HOLDINGS LIMITED

6.

SRTAR (&

(b) BXEREEEERKE (&)
FEmE ()
VS

(i)

(ii)

O R b

7N S B T I S RO TS M R B F
B TREARNEEOBRITE
REM- TN R BRI
18 R {5 2N 5 ) T 36 ) R L B

7N 55 [ 3 A5 AT ) ) R 4 B 4
AR E R o AT B IR BB
TR YN VEREEHPE
A = g o

BRE DT

RZTE=—F+=ZA=+—8"

Mz B 2 F & EF, T 8100
EEHMAEEMEHEIFT
B AAREEZFEBES LA
T AR¥300,000C (—Z& =
T4 AR ¥400,0000T) © JhE
AR IBITERZF B H K
KB RITIFRF BWA 2 & FEIE
/A EE 2 REE R ATE

H 1 (E 157 R

(i)

A H A E R R

AEETIEEBEKREMEHK
REBEAR AEBEBREBIES
B 2 SRR o N AN E
EREEeERERARLERER
RREEZELEPARRER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBRERME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—F——Ff - H=+—HIFFZ

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6.
(b) Financial risk management objectives

SRTA(EZ)
(b) BXEREEEERKE (&)

and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
Other price risk (Continued)

(i)  Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based
on the exposure to price risk of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss at the end of
the reporting period. If the prices of the financial
assets at FVTPL (listed securities) had been 10%
higher/lower, loss would decrease/increase by
approximately RMB2,335,000 (2020: RMB918,000).
If the prices of financial assets at FVTPL (unlisted
investment) had been 10% higher/lower, loss would
decrease/increase by approximately RMB1,475,000
(2020: RMB1,796,000).

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The carrying amount of the bank balances, trade, bills
and other receivables included in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to the
Group's financial assets.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide
for ECL prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use
of lifetime ECL provision for all trade receivables. To
measure the ECL, trade receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics. The Group
has performed historical analysis and identified the key
economic variables impacting credit risk and ECL. It also
considers available reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBRRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2021

6.

== A=A FE

BEz—F

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual debt at
the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has certain exposure to credit risk as the
trade receivables from the five largest customers as at
31 December 2021 represented 68.2% (2020: 64.2%)
of total trade receivables, while 34.4% (2020: 28.2%)

6.

SRTAR (&
(b) BXEREEEERKE (&)

1= B Jm B R ol B P 14 (42)

REEREEERR AEEEEED
EEEBABEREFERE FEMZ
NEAD SRR Fr - TR 2R BUR A 15 1 A
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PRBHEEHNEZERNATRE S
B REOR AN AU E 2 BRI R SR
BEEE-RUEME ARARAEZTRRAE
SENEERRERBRE-
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MESRBLHREKE S RNEEERN
68.2% (T _ZTF :64.2% ) &

WHERE—RFNESRBEHEKRE
SHIBHEBENZ344% (ZTE T F:
282% ) EEBEMHBRAEREES Y

of the total trade receivables were due from the largest
single customer. It has policies in place to ensure that
sales are made to customers with an appropriate credit

history. SREAEABEELHENER
0 to 91 to 181 days Over
At 31 December 2021 90 days 180 days  to 365 days 365 days Total
R=Z--%+-A=t+-A 0Z90A A 911808 181H Z365H 365A M £ @it
ECL rate BHEEEEX 0.3% 2.1% 6.8% 44.6% 8.4%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) EHEE(ARETT) 80,945 25,835 34,782 24,536 166,098
Lifetime ECL (RMB'000) 2HBHEEEE
(AEBTT) (200) (532) (2,358) (10,931) (14,021)
80,745 25,303 32,424 13,605 152,077
0 to 91 to 181 days Over
At 31 December 2020 90 days 180 days  to 365 days 365 days Total
R-B-BE+-A=t-H 0Z90H A 91Z180H 181H Z365H 365H MU L @t
ECL rate BHEEEEX 0.2% 3.0% 7.2% 44.3% 11.3%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) REAE(ARETT) 76,719 25,792 9,048 33,429 144,988
Lifetime ECL (RMB'000) 2HBRHEEESE
(ARETT) (132) (765) (653) (14,826) (16,376)
76,587 25,027 8,395 18,603 128,612
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B BHRME (&
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BEz—F

6.

—— A=+ —HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, trade receivables that
are individually significant have been separately assessed
for impairment. The Group makes periodic assessments
on the recoverability of the receivables based on the
background and reputation of the customers, historical
settlement records and past experience, and also
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportive forward-looking information.

Other receivables

For other receivables, the directors of the Company make
periodic individual assessment on the recoverability of
other receivables based on historical settlement records,

6.

SRTA(EZ)
(b) BXEREEEERKE (&)

=B /m B R 6l B 5P 1 (4
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past experience, and also quantitative and qualitative S H h FE U R IE /9 7] 4R B 1 1T ER
information that is reasonable and supportive forward- 18 Bl 5T 1
looking information.

The movement of loss allowances for other receivables FREMEWRIENEEREZS N
during the year are as follows: T

Other receivables

H fh fE W 5K 18

RMB'000

AR T T

At 1 January 2020 WZE-TF—-—H—H 2,387

Reversal of allowance for ECL TBEEEE BB ERR (1,186)
At 31 December 2020 and R-ZE_TF+_A=+—HK

1 January 2021 —E-—F—HF—H 1,201

Allowance for ECL BHEEEERE 2,833

At 31 December 2021 R=ZB-—F+=A=+—H 4,034

Besides, the management is of opinion that there is toh BB ER A AR VIR ERRE

no significant increase in credit risk on these other AR BRI - B bt E b BUGRIBREE

receivables since initial recognition as the risk of default [B B I M FRE LN Bt TEEAE B

BHER2EARBEEEE T AR

N
27
s ©

is low and, thus, ECL recognised is based on 12m ECL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—F——Ff - H=+—HIFFZ

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6.
(b) Financial risk management objectives

SRTA(EZ)
(b) BXEREEEERKE (&)

and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Bank balances

The credit risk on bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are international and state-owned banks
with good reputation. Based on the loss rates, the ECL
is considered to be insignificant and therefore no loss
allowance was recognised.

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risk associated with its
financial assets.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term. The Group
manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves,
by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows
and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and
liabilities.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables below have been drawn up based on
the contractual maturities of the undiscounted financial
liabilities including interest that will accrue to those
liabilities except where the Group are entitled and intends
to repay the liability before its maturity.

The maturity analysis for other non-derivative financial
liabilities is prepared based on the scheduled repayment
dates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBRRMEE (A

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—F——Ff - H=+—HIFFZ

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)
At 31 December 2021

Non-derivative financial liabilities J{T£¢HEAE

Trade payables BB SHE

Accruals and other payables FRE-GIEY AR
Bank borrowings BTN

Lease liabilities HERE

At 31 December 2020

Non-derivative financial liabilities JEf74 &BEE

Trade payables ERE S508

Accruals and other payables [Est B AR E RN FE
Bank borrowings RITHER

Lease liabilities HERE

RESEANHEEASE A

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
TS
ERA=

%

4.78
5.58

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
IEF
BERAE

%

3.99
5.32

6. €M TR (&

(b) BIBEBREEEERRE (&)
REBELmEE (&)
R==FB=--%+=RA=+—-H

Over

On demand 1year but Over 2 years Total Total
or within less than  but less than  undiscounted carrying
1 year 2 years 5 years cash flow amount

EERS —F0E MEUL AERRE
PR-F BYREE BLREE REEH REAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR
40,594 - - 40,594 40,594
13,324 - - 13,324 13,324
30,764 - - 30,764 30,000
2,881 1,570 732 5,183 4,908
87,563 1,570 732 89,865 88,826

R-—®-—2FE+=A=+-8
Over

On demand 1 year but Over 2 years Total Total
or within less than ~ but less than  undiscounted carrying
1 year 2 years 5 years cash flow amount

EZ sk, —FUE REALE AUERFEE
LR—F BORRE BLIREF MELR REZE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT
25,802 - - 25,802 25,802
11,408 - - 11,408 11,408
40,612 - = 40,612 40,000
2,873 2,167 1,749 6,789 6,335
80,695 2,167 1,749 84,611 83,545

—E-_—FH8



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBRRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—F——Ff - H=+—HIFFZ

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(c) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

(i) the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities (including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss) with standard terms and
conditions and traded on active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market bid
prices and ask prices respectively;

(i) the fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are calculated using quoted
prices. Where such prices are not available, a
discounted cash flow analysis is performed using
the applicable yield curve for the duration of the
instrument for non-optional derivatives;

(iii)  the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding those described above) are
determined in accordance with generally pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based
on the degree to which the fair value is observable:

1. Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
and financial institution for identical assets or
liabilities;

2. Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices); and

3. Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs
for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market date (unobservable inputs).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBRRMEE (A

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—F——Ff - H=+—HIFFZ

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6.
(c) Fair value of financial instruments

(Continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

(Continued)
At 31 December 2021

Financial assets
Financial assets at FVTPL

At 31 December 2020

Financial assets
Financial assets at FVTPL

RESEANHEEASE A

$RMIAE (&)
(¢c) ERMIBEZAFE(£&

REGEHBHRAXERZ A FHETE
(%)

R-B-_-+=ZRA=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
] &A= WA= &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®Tr AR®TR AR¥TR
SRMEE
BEAFEREBERIRD
TREE 38,105 - - 38,105
R-ZB-ZEF+=-HA=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HAl— Frl= HA= &5
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFIT ARBTT ARETT
TREE
ERAFERERYRD
TREE 27,142 - = 27,142




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBRRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—F——Ff - H=+—HIFFZ

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6.
(c) Fair value of financial instruments

(Continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position

(Continued)

Financial assets

SHEE

1) Financial assets at FVTPL

) RAFERBHIENEREE

Fair value as at
KT AHNATE
31/12/21 31/12/20
—E--& —T-F
+=ZA=+-8 +-RA=+—-H
Listed equity Listed equity
securities securities
RMB23,355,000 RMB9, 181,000
L RAE S EmRAES
AR #23,355,000C AK#9,181,0007T

Unlisted equity Unlisted equity
investments investments
RMB14,750,000 RMB17,961,000
FETRARE I ETRARE

A K #14,750,0007T AR#17,961,0007T

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities carried
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements

approximate to their fair values.
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7.

—— A=+ —HILFE
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy
remains unchanged for the year ended 31 December 2020 and
2021.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt (which
includes bank borrowings and lease liabilities) and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
capital and reserves. The directors of the Company review
the capital structure on a continuous basis. As part of this
review, the directors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the issuance of new shares as well as the addition of
new borrowings.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio at 31 December 2021 and 2020 was as
follows:

EXARBER
KEHEEﬁEK'Mﬁ%$%EW%§
BEAFBELCE RABTEEELCEEEER
2$M'ﬁk$$W%%@ﬁ°@i_g:
TERN_T-_—F+_A=+t—HLFE"
AEBEREBRFTIE

\l kﬂ\ﬂ

AEBZEARBRFEER (BRRITER
EREERE)ARAKR T%EAEE%E(
%E?ﬁﬁ$&ﬁﬁ)$ﬂﬁ%$$%@
MEARB RN MO EFERE
$ﬂ$&é$@ﬁﬂM°$¢l%@ﬁ%$
ZERBBETHRIGEET FTHEE
BERER-

EXABF/ERER

R-B_—Kk_F_FF+_HA=1t—8H
MEABBHEMT

Debt

Total equity

Gearing ratio

RESEANHEEASE A

2021 2020
—E_—F T F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
B 34,908 46,335
B 189,708 176,064
ERBEL X 18.4% 26.3%
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION 8.

Information reported to the Directors being the chief operating
decision maker (“CODM"), for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on
the types of goods delivered.

The Group's operating and reportable segments are as follows:

(i)  the manufacture and sale of nonwoven fabric related
products used in automotive interior decoration parts and
other parts; and

(i) the supply and procurement operation segment including
trading of rubber and food products.

Segment revenue and results

Supply and
procurement operation
HERRBEY
2021 2020
ZB--§ CZZC%%
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTR

7 EBE R

AEE(MESEEREE ([EBLERR
D) )2BRUSREARRTEDHRAWE
B EEFERRWER

REBENKERFTT2HD AT

(i) HERHEERRTEAHFREMER
DEVESIEBER: &

(i) HERKBLES B (BFEELRBR
RE)
DEBAREE
Manufacture and sale of
nonwoven fabric related
products Total
HERHERGHEBER &it
2021 2020 2021 2020
ZB--f C-Z-%E ZBZ-f —Z-%F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTRE  ARETT AR¥TR  ARETR

Segment revenue: AHYPA:

Sales to external customers HETHBER 17,171 32,931 164,530 108,695 181,701 141,626
Segment results PEEE (1,474) 2,027 124 (6,416) (1,350) (4,389)
Unallocated corporate incomes AAOBAFARA 7,318 2,555
Unallocated corporate expenses AARDARY (4,284) (1,979)
Profit/(Loss) from operations gens/ (B58) 1,684 (3,813)
Finance costs BEARA (1,859) (2,473)
Loss before tax BEAIEE (175) (6,286)

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated
from external customers. There were no inter-segment sales for
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Fade)

PR (AR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Bz2—F-_—F+-_A=+—HIFEF

8.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment revenue and results (Continued)

8.

Segment results represent the profit/(loss) from each segment
without allocation of interest income, fair value loss on
financial assets at FVTPL, share of results of associates and
central operating expenses including staff costs, finance costs
and income tax credit. This is the measure reported to the
CODM for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment

of segment performance.

Segment assets and liabilities

ASSETS EE

Segment assets NEHEE
Unallocated corporate assets RABAREE
Total assets EEfE
LIABILITIES af

Segment liabilities N

Unallocated corporate liabilities

Total liabilities AERE

RESEANHEEASE A

Supply and
procurement operation

HERRBRY
2021 2020
ZB--§ C"ZCEE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETE
24,715 26,924
2,859 4,816

MER (&

BURAREE (E)
MERERLEDENE WA RAFE
RERIIENEREEZ A FERBRE EIS
BRAREENTRTRER (BFEIK
CRERARFAFRER)NBERTEDE
wA (R WM EELERRER
D EEERNFFEDMRANEGERE-

$ W

D

\

MRS

THEEREE

Manufacture and sale of
nonwoven fabric related

products Total
HERHERGHNEER ait
2021 2020 2021 2020
Z8--% C"Z-%§ ZBZ-§ _Z_%F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETFT AR%ETR ARETT
260,776 254,480 285,491 281,404
58,351 33,900
343,842 315,304
118,102 101,316 120,961 106,132
33,173 33,108
154,134 139,240




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBRRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B2 —E - —F+ - HA="+—HIFEF

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8.
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

- all assets are allocated to reportable segment other than
corporate financial assets including financial assets at
FVTPL, interest in an associate and corporate cash and
bank balances.

- all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other
than corporate financial liabilities including accruals and
other payables.

Other segment information

The following is the analysis of the Group’s other segment

TEER (&
PHEEREE (&)
RERHBRERNS BEHIELR:

BARSMEE (BERAFENERS
SURM S RAE  RB S A TSR
RARE RIRITER)IN IREED
AEET2HH -

- KBRlorcmaE(BREETERREAM
ERRBE)IN-FTEAEHIPRENZE
WD o

Hitn HEHR
AT AAREENEM D ZBER DT

information:
Manufacture and sale of
Supply and nonwoven fabric related
procurement operation products Total
HERRBER HERHERGHEBER &it
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
ZB--§ C"Z-TE  ZBZ-§  —T-%F  ZBI-§  _T-TF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT ARETr AREFT AR%Tx ARETR
Amounts included in the AR BRAR
measure of segment profitor ~ EBREIFHEEM
loss or segment assets RE
Capital expenditure EXRZ - = 3,117 29 3,117 292
Depreciation of property, n¥ BERRETE
plant and equipment - - 6,434 6,058 6,434 6,058
Depreciation on right-of-use assets ~ FFEEENE 356 377 2,486 1,861 2,842 2,238
Write-down of inventories FEHA - - 752 493 752 493
(Reversal of allowance)/allowance ~ FLIENE 5 IBRERL
for expected credit losses BHCERE
recognised on trade receivables, net  (B&EE) /
BRER 1,008 (999) (3,363) 8,282 (2,355) 7,283
(Reversal of allowance)/allowance 3 ALt WS EREA L)
for expected credit losses BACERE
recognised on other receivables, net  (B&EE) /
BRER (1,201) (1,412) 4,034 226 2,833 (1,186)
Loss on disposal of property, LENE BE R
plant and equipment HREEE - - 167 12 167 12
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBRERME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—F——Ff - H=+—HIFFZ

8.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Revenue from major products and services

Information about the Group's major products is set out in
Note 9.

Geographical information

The Group's operations are located in the PRC and Hong Kong.

The Group’s revenue from external customers and information
about its non-current assets by geographical location are
detailed below.

Revenue from
external customers

TERE R (&)
REFEEmRBRHHKA
BRAREEBERMERBNHE -

i & & &
AEBHLEMBIRARERES-

NTHAREBRBINBEPHRARE
BRwREDWIERBEENER

Non-current assets*

REIMBEFEHHEA ERBEE*
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E=-—F —TFF —EBE=-—fF —T-EF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARET T ARBT ARET T
The PRC i 171,249 130,850 47,518 52,512
Hong Kong 8 10,452 10,776 58 421
181,701 141,626 47,576 52,933
* Non-current assets exclude interest in an associate and deferred tax & EMBEETBIEREE AR S RIELER

assets.

Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue generated
from one (2020: one) customer from manufacture and
sale of nonwoven fabric related products segment of the
Group amounting to approximately RMB55,204,000 (2020:
RMB15,933,000) has individually accounted for over 10%
of the Group’s total revenue. No other single customer
contributed 10% or more to the Group’s revenue for the both
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

RESEANHEEASE A

RARE-

EHRTEEFNER

HE T —F+-_A=+—HIFE &
AEBESMHEBERRERBED HBH
—HBFP(ZEZTF: —RZ)EEHKA
4 ANR#55,204,000L (ZE_FF: AR
#15,933,000) BEGAE B B AE R
10% BEZT-_—FR_ZZF_FTF+=A
S+ —HLERBEFE BEAME TP H
AEBHRZEBA10% 3 £ o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBRRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—F——Ff - H=+—HIFFZ

9. REVENUE 9. WA
The Group’s revenue represents sales of nonwoven fabric REE KA TR ITE X R A 2D #)
related products used in automotive interior decoration parts momAEER BBRREMOEE -
and other parts, rubber and food products.
An analysis of revenue by types of goods as follows: REMBRSHHBADT:
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARBTTT
Nonwoven fabric related products ARAEARMTNESH
for use in automotive interior decoration HEEM:
— Sales of automotive floor carpets —AEMBAIEE 157,976 40,027
— Sales of other automotive parts —HA ) TBERAREE 6,554 68,668
Supply and procurement operation: HERREER:
— Sales of rubber —RBHE 6,719 8,366
— Sales of food products —RmiHE 10,452 24,565
Total revenue recognised at a point in time T — R ) BE T SR Y
WA s g8 181,701 141,626
All revenue contracts are for period of one year or less, FrBMAEHNH R —F AT REEY
as permitted by practical expedient under HKFRS 15, the BHREENEISRNEREREZMAT D
transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not BEEREKREGANNRZEL RFEE -
disclosed.
10 OTHER GAINS OR LOSSES 10 Hitlzm 8
2021 2020
—E-—F —ET-FTF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T AR T T
Interest income FE KA 32 37
Fair value gain on financial assets BRATERERIENEHEE
at FVTPL B A B W 5 2,612 2,518
Realised gain on disposal of HERATFERERYIRD
financial asset at fair value through CREEMNDZH KR
profit or loss 3,594 =
Others (note) Hh (A7aE) 1,080 3,317
7,318 5,872

114

Note: Included the amounts is sales of scrap raw materials for the year
ended 31 December 2021 amounted to approximately RMB Nil (2020:
RMB3,265,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBRERME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—F——Ff - H=+—HIFFZ

11. LOSS FROM OPERATIONS 1. REER

The Group's loss from operations is stated after charging/

AEENKEBRENR, (E2) TH%

(crediting) the following: I8 :
2021 2020
—E-—F —EZTF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARBTT
Auditors’ remuneration % ERAD B & 408 750
Depreciation of property, plant and M- - BERZETE
equipment 6,434 6,058
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 2,842 2,238
Expenses relating to short-term leases REHEERX 301 232
Staff costs including directors’ BIXRA (BEEEHH)
remuneration:
— Salaries and allowances — & KERL 16,404 17,577
— Share-based payment expenses — BRI RAX 2,218 1,002
— Retirement benefits scheme — iR RAEAET B K
contributions 2,191 2,578
Cost of inventories recognised ERAHEEN AN TFEKAR
as cost of sales 157,662 128,141
Loss on disposal of property, LEWE WERLESE
plant and equipment 167 12
Write-down of inventories 5 & #MOR 752 493
(Reversal of allowance)/Allowance ERE ZRBENEREER
for ECL on trade receivables EiE (BEED) BE (2,355) 7,283
Allowance/(Reversal of allowance) HiERRBEHEREE
for ECL on other receivables EEEE (BERR) 2,833 (1,186)
Research and development expenditure #7195 M FI % 2 i (f17)
(Note) 961 1,097
Note: The amounts included in cost of sales for the year ended Hit: BEZTE-_—F+-_A=1+—HLEFERA

31 December 2021 amounted to approximately RMB961,000 (2020:

RMB1,097,000).

FESEAMKESR AR

AR

HERAHN SO BARK61,0007T (=

T =T 4F: AR¥1,097,0007T) ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBRRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—F——Ff - H=+—HIFFZ

12.

13.

FINANCE COSTS

Interest expenses on bank borrowings

Interest expenses on lease liabilities
Interest expenses on convertible bonds

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

Current tax B H#A B 18
Hong Kong BE

PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT") PRI EERER
([REMmER])

Deferred tax B IR

Charged/(credited) to profit or loss nga,/ (5tA)

(note 34) B (MsE34)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), the Group is not subject to
any income tax in the Cayman Islands and BVI.

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of Hong Kong
Profit tax, the first HK$2 million of assessable profits of
qualifying group entities will be taxed at 8.25%), and assessable
profits above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits
of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%
(2020: 16.5%). Accordingly, the Hong Kong profits tax of the
qualifying group entity is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2
million of the estimated assessable profit and at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profit above HK$2 million.

116 CHINA AUTOMOTIVE INTERIOR DECORATION HOLDINGS LIMITED

BARAFRBHEED
wholly repayable within five years RITIEROFEER
HEABBENFEER

ARRESFFERX

. A& A
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARBT T
1,523 1,911
336 283
- 279
1,859 2,473

. FREBAxX (ER)

2021 2020
—E- Sl o=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBET T
157 (287)

157 (287)

78 (2,109)

235 (2,396)

REFSHEMABEBRRHES ([REHEH
RESDROIIRER AEERHASESE R
RECBAREESBABMEFMEN -

REBEBEMNESHHAMAMNEHREGE &
EREEERC E2AB BT Z AR &
H128.25% 2 R BMIHIE MiEB2A &
P8 TL 2 FERR B M 6 #216.5% 2 Tt R g ¢
H-ANEMEMNERBMEHEER 2EE
BERZ N BESIZI65% (ZTE_FTF:
16.5% ) ZHM— R EBMBHIE - H it - BB
SEERE2A S BTG EBREENIZ
8.25% ;T EFEAMNEH HBE2AEBE BTG
FHERBURNIE16.5% st HEBRMISH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBRRMEE (A

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—F——Ff - H=+—HIFFZ

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 13.

(Continued)

No provision for taxation in Hong Kong is recognised as there
is no assessable profit for the year ended 31 December 2021
(2020: Nil).

PRC EIT is calculated at the applicable rates based on estimated
taxable income earned by the PRC subsidiary of the Group
with certain tax preference, based on existing legislation,
interpretation and practice in respect thereof.

Pursuant to EIT rules and regulations of the PRC, the applicable
PRC EIT rate of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries for the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 is 25%.

The reconciliation between the income tax credit and the loss
before tax multiplied by the PRC EIT rate is as follows:

R8s (&%) (&)
Rz -_—F+_A=+—HLFE
BRI B ARIE -

4 % P8 BRI B (T4 B R TR R AR
BIED BT AE T RIAE RS A & H
1A 3 ) P B ER £ 3 B 3R B MR A+ b R
BiEEH o

BETRECEMERRAOILER BE-F
—HERCEBCEF+_A=+—-RILFE-
AEESNH RN BARNERDTECERSG
B B25% ©

SRR BB AT ERRATELEMS
MR EFEMEOHERET

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-TF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR% T ARETT

Loss before tax Br iR RS 18 (175) (6,286)
Tax at the PRC enterprise income tax rate ZH B DTSR X25%

of 25% (2020: 25%) FE(ZE=_TF:25%) (43) (1,571)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible BENRF R BEZE

for tax purpose 2,205 4,567

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERHIABEO TG 518 285

Tax effect of share of results of associate JEMGHFE N R EBENR BT E (83) (655)

Tax effect of income that are not taxable #7821 Ug A B 55 76 57 22 (1,392) (2,911)

Over-provision in previous years BEFEBRBERME = (458)

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries & 2 =] T E i K2 (970) (1,653)

Income tax expenses/(credit) FTiSRiAx (Ke) 235 (2,396)

At 31 December 2021, no deferred tax has been provided for
in respect of the temporary differences attributable to profits
earned by the PRC subsidiaries amounting to approximately
RMB98,687,000 (2020: RMB106,936,000) as the Group is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

RESEANHEEASE A

R-ZTE-_—F+-_A=+—HB AAFL
AR BEM B AR BREAZEEFOA
R #98,687,000L (ZE=ZFF: AR
106,936,0007T ) &) BG BF 2= 58 M /E R 7 1B
BE AARNEEEAEIEREEZ8ED
Brfd - i ER A = B AR AT A2 R & pA Al B % ok
@o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—F——Ff - H=+—HIFFZ

14. LOSS PER SHARE

15.

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share amount is based on
the loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately RMB410,000 (2020: approximately
RMB3,890,000) and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 143,261,786 (2020: 84,191,573) in issue during the
year.

Diluted loss per share

For the year ended 31 December 2021, diluted loss per share is
the same as the basic loss per share because the effects of the
Company'’s outstanding share options were anti-dilutive.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, diluted loss per share
is the same as the basic loss per share because the effects of
the Company’s outstanding share options and conversion of
convertible bonds were anti-dilutive.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES" AND
EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION

Pursuant to the Section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordnance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as
follows:

14. ERER

15.

BREREE
ERERNGESBEIIBREBEARARREE AEMG
EEEEHARRAL10,000T (S -F4:
4 AR #3,890,0007T) R FANBE BEITE @R
ZINHEF 9 80143,261,7860% (— T T4 :
84,191,573 ) 5T E B H -

BREEER
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=Z=+—HILEE &
REEEEESRAABERAR SRR A
DAY AR ITE BB AR A A R B U -
HE-_ZE-_ZEZFE+_-_A=1+—HIEE &
fp# g EREgREANEIEER  EHRE
NEIMMATEERERERTRRESE
[ S R o

EE BRETHRAEBREES M

REBEEB N BEHE3IS3N) KR AR (BT
EENDER)ROIFE250T

Salaries and Retirement benefit Share-based
Director fees allowances scheme contributions payment expenses Total
E3he FeRmi BHRBAEHER URBAERHHH Rt
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
“®--F “ZCTH CR--f “ECTF CR--f “ZCTE CR--F “ECTF CR--f “ZCIF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARMTR ARETT AR®TR ARETT ARMTR ARET:
Name of director ESpg
Executive director HITEE
Zhuang Yuejin (Note (a) St (Hit(a) 232 400 - - - - - 100 232 500
Wong Ho Yin (Note (b)) EER (W7 0) - - 1,394 1,493 16 13 - 100 1,410 1,606
Xiao Suni EE3 100 107 - = - = - 100 100 207
Independent non-executive BV HHTEE
director
Mak Wai Ho BER 100 107 - - - - - - 100 107
Ng Li La Adeline R 80 85 - - - - - - 80 85
Zhu Chun Yan RER 80 85 - = - = - 100 80 185
592 784 1,39 1,493 16 13 - 400 2,002 2,690
Notes: Wiar
(@)  Mr. Zhuang Yuejin is also the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of (@) HRELEETAARANERRITHEE
the Company.
(b)  Mr. Wong Ho Yin is also the Chief Financial Officer of the Company. (b) EWEALRENRARANYGEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBRRMEE (A

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—F——Ff - H=+—HIFFZ

15.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’' AND
EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors and chief
executive as a discretionary bonus or an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
There was no arrangement under which a Director waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments during the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020.

The executive director’s emolument shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of
the Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive director's emoluments shown
above were for their services as directors of the Company.

No transactions agreement and contracts in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company or any subsidiaries of
the Company was a party an in which a director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

The emoluments of senior management (excluding directors)
fell within the following band:

15. EE - ESTBRABREEF M

(&)

BHEZE - —FRZZTZFF+A=+—
ALFE AEERERAEERERITERA
BXMEERBBIEA SRS MASIA
AEESHNREIIELABBBEE REEZZ
EZ—FRZZFZTFF+ZRA=T—HLHF
E HMEEEHEXRERETANHeH R
B

EXRARATESHFHARERARARRRA
SEEBORBME -

EXARBIFRATEEHE RREEETA
NREEENHE -

ARBHARBERNMERRGEIT LB
AEEEXE REEIXFAETAEREFED
o HEMAH MEEFREPEEZXE
BEHEAEAER-

SREEE(TEREZ)NMENFUT
HEER

Number of individuals

AE
2021 2020
—E-—& —T-FTF
Nil to HKD 1,000,000 £ %1,000,0007% 7T 3 3
16. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 16. EERSMEES

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year AEBRAFERNAMNRSHMHA L BEM
included 2 (2020: 2) directors, details of whose remuneration H(ZE_ZF WEB)EF HeFBEH7
set out in Note 15 above. The emoluments of the remaining 3 R EXHFIS B T=2R5FHFMA L (=

(2020: 3) individuals are set out below: TTF=R)NFMMEI BT
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-EEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Basic salaries and allowances HAFH & KERL 473 564
Share-based payment expenses AR 13 15 R 7 52 = =
Retirement benefits scheme contributions iR K #@ |51 2 it 7% 25 203
498 767

hESEMNMBEKEEER 2 A —E-—-F® 119



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—F——Ff - H=+—HIFFZ

16. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 16. aEBREMEES (&)
(Continued)
The number of the senior management (excluding directors) of AEERREREEBE(TEREES)ZAHEN
the Group are within the following band: FUATEHERA :

Number of individuals

A
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-FF
Nil to HKD 1,000,000 = %1,000,000/ 7T 3 B
During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no HE-_Z - —FR-_Z-_FFF+_A=+—
remuneration was paid by the Group to the non-executive AEFER AEEMERIENTES &
director, highest paid employees as an inducement to join or SYMNEEXNME EAMARE RN
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. AXNEEBENRE IEAHBEE-EE
None of the non-executive director and highest paid employees ZE - FRZEZTFFTA=+—HIE
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the years FEAN BEFNTESREIMESEENR
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. ENRENEE M-
17. DIVIDEND 17. B2
The directors do not recommend the payments of any dividend EETERREE S —F+=_A=+—
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: HEFERNEAMARE(ZEZZF: AR
RMBNil). BEIT) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—F——Ff - H=+—HIFFZ

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. ¥ BERRE
Furniture
Plant and Motor and Leasehold
Buildings ~ machinery vehicles fixtures improvements Total
BT BEREH RE  HGRREE HENEES At

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL AREBTT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR

Cost BA
At 1 January 2020 RZZE-Z5—-A—H 10,067 85,331 4,353 2,416 2,885 105,052
Additions NE - 290 - 2 - 292
Disposals L& - - - (18) - (18)
Exchange alignment ERAE - - (45) (15) (15) (75)
At 31 December 2020 and RZZZTF
1 January 2021 +ZA=+-Hk

“2-—-%-R-A 10,067 85,621 4,308 2,385 2,870 105,251
Additions NE - 1,724 618 133 642 3,117
Disposals HE - (293) (152) = - (445)
Exchange alignment 5 AR - - (23) (7) (43) (73)
At 31 December 2021 R=B=-%

+=-A=1+-H 10,067 87,052 4,751 2,511 3,469 107,850
Accumulated depreciation RiE
At 1 January 2020 N_E_FEF—-F—H 4,667 43,603 2,919 1,474 2,229 54,892
Charge for the year FEXH 305 5,137 305 237 74 6,058
Disposals HE - - = (6) = 6)
Exchange alignment S - = (45) (15) (15) (75)
At 31 December 2020 and RZEZZ

1 January 2021 +ZA=+-Bk

—E-—-%-F-H 4,972 48,740 3,179 1,690 2,288 60,869
Charge for the year FEXH 305 5,351 438 253 87 6,434
Disposals HE = (124) (152) = = (276)
Exchange alignment B 5 A% - = () (7) (35) (47)
At 31 December 2021 R=ZE=-%

+=ZA=t+-H 5,277 53,967 3,460 1,936 2,340 66,980
Net book value RE R E
At 31 December 2021 R-E=--%

+=-A=1+-H 4,790 33,085 1,291 575 1,129 40,870
At 31 December 2020 i

+-A=+-8 5,095 36,881 1,129 695 582 44,382
At 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of buildings RZEBEZ—F+_A=+—H A5EEEHH
of the Group pledged as security for the Group's bank BEEENEARKL 790,000 (=%
borrowings amounted to approximately RMB4,790,000 (2020: F: AR #5,095,0007T) NIEFEAEERT
RMBS5,095,000). fE R AR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

W

BRI (A

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE - FE-—Ff - A=+—HIFE
18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)
Impairment assessment

At the end of each reporting period, the directors of the
Company have performed impairment assessment in respect
of the manufacturing and sale of nonwoven fabric related
products, the recoverable amounts of which have been
determined based on value in use using cashflow projection
approved by the directors of the Company covering a five years
period. The pre-tax discount rates applied in measuring the
amounts of value in use is 8%. The carrying amount of then
relevant assets does not excess the recoverable amounts based
on value in use, and there was no impairment considered
necessary of provide in the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: HK$ Nil).

18. ME -WMEKRE (&)

AR G

NEREHR NARESCRES THE
ERREREEETRESG K kES
HEERANRBEFATIE AR E R F RO
BernsBARBEAEEE T 2 EH
BEECEMRANBATRIEEXA8% - BHE
ENREEENEABAERLATRESEE
BEE-_ZT-_—F+-A=+—ALEFE"
BMERENRAEENGE VBRI QMELE
= (:3@:%@ ZEL) °

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 19. ERAEEE
Leasehold Leased
land Properties Total
HE i HEWHE &5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®EF T AR®EF T ARET T
Cost B A

At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-_ZTF—H—H 2,552 6,441 8,993
Additions NE - 3,711 3,711
Disposal nfi= - (414) (414)
Exchange alignment ME W A = (43) (43)

At 31 December 2020 and R _ZTF

1 January 2021 +ZA=+—HBRK

—T—%—H—H 2,552 9,695 12,247
Additions NE = 1,004 1,004
Exchange alignment PE W 5 = (51) (51)

At 31 December 2021 R=ZB=—F
+=A=+— 2,552 10,648 13,200

Accumulated depreciation AN E
At 1 January 2020 R-Z-ZTF—F—H 73 1,818 1,891
Charge for the year FRZH 73 2,165 2,238
Disposal & - (414) (414)
Exchange alignment ME ¥, 5H 5 = (19) (19)
At 31 December 2020 and RZZE_ZTF+_-A
1 January 2021 =t+—BAk=ZT=——

—H—H 146 3,550 3,696
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—F——Ff - H=+—HIFFZ

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 19. EREEE (&
Leasehold Leased
land Properties Total
HE L HEWE &5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBEF T ARBEF T ARBTT
Charge for the year FAZH 73 2,769 2,842
Exchange alignment ME W A = (44) (44)
At 31 December 2021 R=B=—F
+=—B=+-—H 219 6,275 6,494
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2021 R=-ZB=_—F
+=-A=+—H 2,333 4,373 6,706
At 31 December 2020 R=ZB-ZF
+=—B=+-—H 2,406 6,145 8,551
2021 2020
—EB-—&F —TEZETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARET T
Expenses relating to short-term leases REHER 301 232
Total cash outflow for leases (note) HERS ML B (M) 3,215 2,610
Addition to right-of-use assets CTAREERE 1,004 3,711
Note: Amount includes payments of principal of RMB2,578,000 (2020: Mt ZeREBREINHEEEN A AR
RMB2,095,000) and interest portion of RMB336,000 (2020: 2,578,000t (ZZ =FF: AR %2,095,000
RMB283,000) of lease liabilities and lease terms ends within 12 7T) RA B E S AR%336,000T (ZE-FF:
months of RMB301,000 (2020: RMB232,000). AR #283,0007T)  FEIA 128 A REIH A A
R #301,0007T (ZE =4 : A R#232,000
JT) °
Lease liabilities of RMB4,908,000 (2020: RMB6,335,000) are RZZEZ—F+-_A=1+T—HBH HEE&®E
recognised with related right-of-use assets of RMB4,373,000 AR¥4,908,000 (ZE_FF: ARK

(2020: RMB6,145,000) as at 31 December 2021. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the
lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

At 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of leasehold land

pledged as security for the Group’s bank borrowings amounted
to approximately RMB2,333,000 (2020: RMB2,406,000).

RESEANHEEASE A

6,335,000C) A EAEEE AR
4,373,000 (ZZE=ZF : AR¥6,145,000
TR -BREAARENHEEENERE
mIN HERZTEENEANZLE-HEE
EN A AIEBRER-

MN—ZE-——F+-A=+—H #k54x%£H
RITEFREFARNEELHNERELNS
AR#2,333,000c (ZE =2 F: AR¥
2,406,0007T ) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—F——Ff - H=+—HIFFZ

20. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 20. B ARINFEAER
Particulars of subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December RZBEZ—FRZFE_FF+=_A=1+—H"
2021 and 2020 were as follows: AARMIBAR ZFBTOT

Nominal value

of issued
and fully
paid ordinary
Place of shares/lIssued
incorporation/ and paid up/ Proportion of ownership
registration registered interest and voting power
Name of Company and operation capital held by the Company Principal activities
ERTREBRE
BRZ
EE/BRTR
TR/ B/ KRARFEMERER
AREH BEREERHY HEE RERLH TEEH
2021 2020
—E--f —T%H
Direct Indirect  Direct Indirect
E# Bk =k fi#&
Joystar (BVI) Automotive Interior British Virgin UsD1 100% - 100% - Investment holding
Decoration Limited Islands (“BVI")
ERERRHES 127 REER
((EBEARES])
Joystar (BVI) Auto Inter-parts Limited ~ BVI UsD1 100% - 100% - Investment holding
EEERRES (E RERR
Joystar International Investment Hong Kong HK$1,170,177 - 100% - 100% Trading of nonwoven fabric
Limited related products used
in automotive interior
decoration parts and other
parts
REERREFRAA 0 11701778 T BEEARREAMTREM
BANEHMIEBER
Joystar China Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% - 100% Trading of rubber
RERBERERRAR B 17T BEERR
Joystar Wuxi (note (i) PRC usD7,477,172 - 100% - 100% Manufacturing of nonwoven
fabric related products
used in automotive interior
decoration parts and other
parts
fRE (E5H) (M) T 7477172% T SERRNAERH T REM
BANBEHHIEBER
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—F——Ff - H=+—HIFFZ

20. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Nominal value
of issued
and fully

paid ordinary

Place of shares/Issued

incorporation/ and paid up/

registration registered

Name of Company and operation capital
BRTRARE

BR2

EE/BRTR

TR/ B/

NAER BEREELY HARER
Link Excellent Limited BVI UsD50,000
ABRARES 50,000% 7T

Link Sharp International Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000
£ 10,000/ 7T

Sinogate Energy Limited BVI usD1
hEERBR A EEERRES 1%7
Splendid Sun Limited Hong Kong HK$1
PmERRAA B 1T
w85 (LB)ERR A (note () PRC USD600,000
PRE S (LR)BRAA (M) HE 600,0003 7T
Loyal Brands International Limited BVI UsD50,000
EBERRES 50,000 7T

Giant Faith Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000
B 10,000 7T

None of the subsidiaries had debt securities outstanding at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

Note:
(i) Registered as a wholly-owned foreign enterprise under the PRC law.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group, which in the
opinion of directors, principally attached the results or assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in to
opinion of directors, result in particulars of excessive lengths.

FESEAMKESR AR

20. B ARINFHMAER (&

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting power

held by the Company Principal activities
ENBRBHERER
RERLA TEER
2021 2020
—EC--f —T-ZF
Direct Indirect  Direct Indirect
EE B B#% &
100% - 100% - Investment holding
REERK
- 100% - 100% Trading of food products
EERM
- 100% - 100% Investment holding
REERK
- 100% - 100% Trading of rubber
BEERE
- 100% - 100% Trading of rubber
BEEKRR
100% - 100% - Investment holding
REZR
- 100% - 100% Trading of food products

wmEE A O
BERm

RERKFAEFERBENBRAREEE
Al M RITE R ERE S

fif a2 -
0 REPEEZEEMRIAIEELCE-
LRFINESRAUARBORENAER

REAZENAEENBRR -EERR M
JIHEMHMBARNFEESENBR TR
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—F——Ff - H=+—HIFFZ

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Cost of investment in associates
— Unlisted

Share of post-acquisition loss and
other comprehensive income,
net of dividends received
— Unlisted

Impairment loss

During the year under review, no impairment loss on interest
in associates of (2020: RMBNil) was recognised in the
Group's consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on the basis of material decline in the
recoverable amount which was below the carrying amount

21. REBEE QT ESR
2021 2020
—E-_—F —E T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETTT
REE QR HIRE RN AR
—3ELEmM 24,450 25,259
R ER
FEMZEUA
(EMBrEWERE)
—3EET (4,155) (4,628)
VEREN SEi] (6,455) (6,917)
13,840 13,714
CEFEAN - BRAIKEEEAETNRE

and adverse changes in the market in which the associates

operated.

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had interest in the i

following associates:

Place of

incorporation/

registration

ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ@%&%%
THMEL RAEENGEBEaEME2E
WaRP W ARERNEE R FNER ZRE

BE(ZE_FF: ARBTR) -

—§R=FT=F

NREEFRET IS

#=+—-fA=+—8"

7 82 B30 T 51 A8 0 ) T A o

Proportion of
ownership interest

Issued and

and voting power

Name of Company and operation paid up capital held by the Group  Principal activity

HEMAREL BR rEBRERARER
NRER REEHE BERTRBERA RERLH TEXRK
2021 2020
=B “Z_TF
Prominent Alliance Limited BVI usD100,000 42% 42% Investment holding
RERRRES 100,000% 7T REZR
GEO Securities Limited Hong Kong HKD96,698,421 42% 42% Dealing and advising on securities
9 96,698,421/ 7T BHR 5 RHH
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T _—F+_HA=+—HIFFE
21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 21. REEE QTR (2)

Summarised financial information in respect of the associates AT EH B E R AR FERBEE -
are set out below.

2021 2020
— - —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARET T
Current assets MEEE 40,589 36,219
Non-current assets EREBEE 30,841 35,113
Current liabilities mENBE (43,045) (42,808)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE - =
2021 2020
—EB-— & —TEFTF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARET T
Revenue g 6,192 2,074
Share of results for the year FERGEE 787 6,243
Other comprehensive loss for the year FEEMEEERE - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEL2EEBEARE 787 6,243
Group's share of results of associates AREBELB S AR ELE 330 2,622
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to LM EERBERRE M BEHRRAERR
the carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised HENFNEREEENSRAT
in the consolidated financial statements is as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT ARET T
Net assets of the associate B N E M EEFEE 28,385 28,524
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REB R E AR
interest in the associate Fir & # Lt ) 42% 42%
11,921 11,980
Goodwill SRS 8,374 8,651
Impairment loss BB E 1R (6.455) (6,917)
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest 78 5 B /A B & 2 5] 49 1 &
in the associate BREE 13,840 13,714
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21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

22.

128

Particular of impairment testing on interest in an associate are
disclosed below:

Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing purposes to
the following cash — generating units operated by an associate:

- Provision of dealing and advising on securities business

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
recoverable amount of this cash-generating units has been
determined based on a value in use calculation which uses cash
flow projection based on financial budgets approved by the
directors and valued by the professional independent valuer
covering a five year period, and pre-tax discount rate of 8.8%
(2020: 13.5%) per annum. cash flows beyond that five-year
period have been extrapolated using a steady 2.5% (2020:
2.4%) growth rate. This growth rate does not exceed the long-
term average growth rate for the market.

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
management determines that there is no impairment on the
interests in associates as the financial performance of associates
improved in both years.

The key assumptions used in the value in use calculations are
as follows:

Budgeted market
shares

Average market share in the period
immediately before the budget period.
The values assigned to assumption
reflect past experience

Budgeted gross Average gross margins achieved in

margin the period immediately before the
budget period which reflects the past
experience
INVENTORIES

Raw materials B i1t
Work in progress & m
Finished goods BIRK Gh

During the year, write-down of raw material of approximately
RMB752,000 (2020: RMB493,000) has been recognised and
included in the cost of sales in the current year.

CHINA AUTOMOTIVE INTERIOR DECORATION HOLDINGS LIMITED

21. REE&

DNEMES (&
R AR 2 R S RENT -

HEEHRRENATEE
THREELEM:

Bt i N ) A8 9 DA

NS PNECE

HE T -GN _T-_THFF+_A=+—
BIFFE ZBESEABEMNAI KO S5ET)
BEBEFEREEFELET ZAEAKAE
RNEEER AT KCEEB T HEMGED
FFHUBEENRESREEA UIRETF
swu_?_$¢43wwmﬁﬁ%ﬁ$

HESEH-BARFHE2RERENER
%ndl%Tzs%(gxpfji 2.4% ) Helif o
HIEERNBBEMES E2RAFHEREK

- };E 'f/ N A2

HE_T-_ R _FT_TF+_A=+—
BEFE EEEETABE AN ERI
ERE SRAABE N AMIERIENZMWHE
FEHEIRA-

EREEAEEZMAZERBRRET

BE M ZEBEHREEZ T
ha = THER X -RRKRAA
ZBERM BT LR
FBEER X EEBREHNREAER
THERE RBBE
Qg«%ﬁ
3T
2021 2020
—BC-—fF —EFF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTT
13,500 15,233
996 1,160
16,097 14,790
30,593 31,183

FR R BRSO A R752,000T (=&
—TF: AR%493,0007T) 2 MR AN
FEZHEHEKNER -
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. EWWE 5 R1E
2021 2020
—E-—F —EF
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR¥TR ARBET T
Trade receivables JE W E 5 R IR 166,098 144,988
Less: allowance for ECL WA EEEIBRE (14,021) (16,376)
152,077 128,612
The aging analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice RIFBEZERA - ERE ZRIBERNERER ST (&
date, net of allowance for ECL, is as follows: HMBRBEHEEEERE) T :

2021 2020
—EC-—F —E-EF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBEF T
0 to 90 days 0Z290H 80,745 76,587
91 to 180 days 91£2180H 25,303 25,027
181 to 365 days 1812365H 32,424 8,395
Over 365 days BiE365H 13,605 18,603
152,077 128,612
The Group’s trading terms with customers are mainly on AEEEEFPNESRREEREFEE BRI
credit. The credit terms generally ranging from 30 days to 120 Z?\)E'F REAEENREHE EEH—
days, depending on the creditworthiness of customers and M F30E120R o REBE B BRZEEERA
the existing relationship with the Group. The Group seeks to ZJELISZ KIH © iﬁiﬂﬂﬂiﬁzmﬁ?ﬁﬂ BRERRE

maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue EHEM BWESHHEREE

balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. Trade
receivables are non-interest bearing.
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23

. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

At 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of the Group's
trade receivables were denominated in RMB and USD of
approximately RMB146,804,000 and RMB5,273,000 (2020:
RMB127,441,000 and RMB1,171,000) respectively.

Movement in lifetime ECL that has been recognised for trade
receivables in accordance with the simplified approach set out
in HKFRS 9 for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

23.

EWESHE (&

R - —F+-_A=+—H AEEHN
EWESHRBEZERABEDIANARERET
FTE-D RN AEAR®K146,804,0007T &
AR®ES5,273,000 (ZZEZFF: ARK
127,441,0007C & AR ¥1,171,0007T) ©

BE_ZE- R -_FTE-_FTF+-_A=+—
HEFE AEEERBEETEUBRELER
BORMAE B AR EWE HFHIAEER 2 H
EHEEREES-

Total

et

RMB'000

ARBET T

At 1 January 2020 R-ZT=_ZTF—HA—H 9,094

Allowance for ECL FEEEEREBEE 7,282
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RZZE-_ZTF+-_A=+—HK

—E-—%—H—H 16,376

Reversal of allowance for ECL FEHEEEBERERR (2,355)

At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+=ZRA=+—H 14,021

The loss allowances decreased by approximately RMB2,355,000
for trade receivables during the year ended 31 December 2021.
Movement in allowance for ECL that has been recognised for
trade receivables under ECL model of HKFRS 9 for the years

B - 4F+-A=+—BHLFE"
EWREZRENEBEBEREERILIOARE
2,355,000t - BREHE T - —F R _FT—
TE+ A=+ ALFEEAEECRES

BUMBHREERNEIRBHREEERREA
RUESHFARRBRBRNEEERREEDN
FFIRE NP 6

ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 was detailed in note 6.

24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24 ERRE -ZeREMEKRKIE
RECEIVABLES
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Trade deposits Bo%e 15,141 9,962
Prepayments TE 3 5RIA 6,634 3,038
Other receivables H {th fE U FRIA 7,467 11,174
29,242 24,174
Details of assessment of ECL are set out in note 6. TEHEE BRI A BN M6 -
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25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
Listed securities: tmES:
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong BB LR RAE S
Unlisted investment: FLEHRE:
Unlisted investment in Hong Kong EEBNIFELTRE

Fair values are determined with reference to quoted market bid
prices and quoted price from financial institution.

26. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in banks,
net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the reporting period as shown in the consolidated
statement of cash flows can be reconciled to the related items
in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows:

Cash and bank balances & RIRTTHE R
Renminbi AR

Hong Kong dollars BT

United States dollars ETT

RESEANHEEASE A

25.

26.

RATEREBERIENERMEE
2021 2020
—EB=-—F —E-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTT
23,355 9,181
14,750 17,961
38,105 27,142

REFEDZEMRTHEEAEREBRHERE L
WEMETE -

BE RIRITEER
REARERERME RERRSSEY
BEFERS ROTFH MBREBRST
B -GARSRERMAREHRNRS
RESSENTREAHHRREA0IEH
B A HERMT :

2021 2020
—E=-—F —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR AR T T
24,583 26,820
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARBTT
8,787 11,123
7,690 7,371
8,106 8,326
24,583 26,820
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26. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued)

At 31 December 2021, the bank balances of the Group
denominated in Renminbi amounted to approximately
RMB8,785,000 (2020: RMB11,123,000) were kept in banks
in the PRC. Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is
subject to the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily

26. R RIRTT

THER (2
R-_ZT-_—F+_A=+—8B XEBUA
REFELFHRAFBIEANRITZRITE
43 ANR#8,785,000 (- T ¢ }\E
#11,123,0007T) ° A R SR SN B 3B <F
FEISNET KD REE EERMNEETE
FE

FHRRITZESRERRBITFRANEZ
EE I EREFE

bank deposit rate.

27. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.5 each
At 1 January 2020

Capital reduction (note (1))
Share consolidation (note (ii))

Ordinary shares of HK$0.025 each
At 31 December 2020,

1 January 2021 and

31 December 2021

Issued and fully paid:

At 1 January 2020

Capital reduction (note (ii))

Issue of share upon conversion of
convertible bonds (note (i)

Share consolidation (note (if))

At 31 December 2020 and
1 January 2021

Issue of share upon placing (note (iv))

At 31 December 2021

27. B &
Number of shares Amount Amount
RHEE x| 8
HK$000 RMB'000
FAET ANREFT
EE
i%@fﬁo SETLE) L AR

—E-ZTF-f—H 2,000,000,000 1,000,000 863,495
Hﬂliﬁm (BzG)) 198,000,000,000

BOE B () (160,000,000,000) = =
EREE0.0258 T HLER
R-B--f+-A=+-8"

“E--f-f-HARK

—E--%+=-A=1+-H 40,000,000,000 1,000,000 863,495
E?&ﬁ&ﬁ%&ﬂ'

R-FE-_TF—A—H 398,131,200 199,065 163,359
R A EI R (732 (i) = (197,074) (161,725)
BB R I E AR M ETRG

(B (i) 79,626,240 398 350

&0 (A7) (382,205,952) = =
R-E-ZF+-A=+-HEK

—E2--%-8-H 95,551,488 2,389 1,984
REERETRG (F1:2 ) 71,663,616 1,791 1,492
R-E-—-%+-A=+-H 167,215,104 4,180 3,476
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EBE_—F

—— A=+ —HILFE

27. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Note:

@)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

On 3 March 2020, the par value of the ordinary shares of HK$0.50
each is reduced to HK$0.005 each by cancelling the paid-up capital
to the extent of HK$0.495 each of the shares.

On 30 September 2020, the share consolidation became effective
on the basis of every five issued and unissued ordinary shares of
par value HK$0.005 each in the share capital of the Company being
consolidated into one consolidated share of par value of HK$0.025
each.

On 2 September 2020, convertible bonds were converted of the
principal amount of HK$1,372,218 into 18,296,240 shares at the
conversion price of HK$0.075 per share.

On 9 September 2020, convertible bonds were converted of the
principal amount of HK$600,000 into 8,000,000 shares at the
conversion price of HK$0.075 per share.

On 22 September 2020, convertible bonds were converted of the
principal amount of HK$1,575,000 into 21,000,000 shares at the
conversion price of HK$0.075 per share.

On 24 September 2020, convertible bonds were converted of the
principal amount of HK$1,425,000 into 19,000,000 shares at the
conversion price of HK$0.075 per share.

On 25 September 2020, convertible bonds were converted of the
principal amount of HK$999,750 into 13,330,000 shares at the
conversion price of HK$0.075 per share.

On 3 May 2021,
price of HK$0.32 per placing share.

the Company placed 71,663,616 new shares at a

FESEABREEER QA

27. BRAK (&

(@)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

R-E-_ZT4=-A=-H EBTHEREE
0.495B TR ERA I ERMME0.508 T2
TLim AR A EE IR E 8 8%0.005/8 7T

BOEGHR-ZZE_TEFENA=THEN UK
ARARBRAF S ARSREE.005ETHE
BITRABITERREHA—RSTREE.025
BT A ORI B -

RZZZZTFAAZB TJRBREHFCRER
BERRKRM0.075B T K A£1,372,2188 TH
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HE—F——Ff - H=+—HIFFZ

28. RESERVES 28. f#1&

The amounts of the Group's reserves and movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Notes:

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in the share
premium of the Company are distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to
pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Share premium represents premium arising from the issue of shares at a price
in excess of their par value per share and after deduction of capitalisation
issue and issuance costs of placing of shares.

Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus of the Company represented the difference between
the net assets value of the subsidiary acquired and the nominal value of the
share capital of the Company issued in exchange thereof pursuant to the
reorganisation during the year ended 31 December 2010.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group arose as a result of the Group
reorganisation implemented in preparation for the listing of the Company’s
shares in 2010 and represented the difference between the nominal value
of the aggregate share capital of the subsidiaries acquired under the
reorganisation scheme, over the nominal value of the share capital of the
Company issued in exchange therefore.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Statutory reserve

Subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC shall appropriate 10% of
its annual statutory net profit (after offsetting any prior year's losses) to the
statutory reserve fund account in accordance with the PRC Company Law.
When the balance of such reserve fund reaches 50% of the entity’s share
capital, any further appropriation is optional. The statutory reserve fund can
be utilised to offset prior year's losses or to increase capital after proper
approval.
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29. TRADE PAYABLES

30.

The aging analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice

dates, is as follows:

0 to 90 days 0290H

91 to 180 days 91E180F
181 to 365 days 181%365H
Over 365 days BiE365H

Trade payables generally have credit terms ranging from 10

days to 60 days.

At 31 December 2021, trade payables are denominated in RMB
and HKD of approximately RMB39,971,000 and RMB623,000
(2020: RMB24,821,000 and RMB981,000) respectively.

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

Accruals of staff costs FE5H B TRA
Accruals of operating expenses EEtEE R X
Payable to fixed assets vendor FEA B 7E & B 5 3R
Other payables H A FE A 5RIB

FESEAMKESR AR

29.

30.

BN E S RHE
BRIFZEEZEEH  ENESHHIENERER T
T
2021 2020
—E-_—F T F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARETF T
22,859 10,155
2,277 1,970
678 123
14,780 13,554
40,594 25,802

ERESHRBEEH KN TF10E60H -

RZBE_—F+_A=+—H ENESXK

HARAAREEETHAE DR AEAR
#£39,971,0007T & A R #623,000T (=& =
T AR#24,821,0007T & A R #981,000

e ©

ErERAREMENRIE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTIT
3,416 3,428
1,128 1,388

855 642

7,925 5,950
13,324 11,408
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-F_—F1+A=1—HIFE
31. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 31. 6N EE

The following provides information about contract liabilities UNTEHERFAANESNAEBEZER
from contract with customers:

2021 2020
—E-—F —E_THF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBF T
At 1 January Kn—A—H 20,110 16,086
Revenues recognised during the year FARRHBA (REH
that was included in the contract FFAEHEE)
liabilities at the beginning of the year (20,110) (16,086)
Increase in contract liabilities as a FAREFBREAEDN
result of advance from customers EHBEEM
during the year 30,007 20,110
At 31 December R+ZA=+—8H 30,007 20,110
The contract liabilities represent the Group's obligation to GHBEEASEERREXEREFPRE
transfer goods for which the Group has received consideration, BEBEBEREER - GHNEEIN —FA®
or for which an amount of consideration is due from RAEWA - ZEGmE (5] 8% TP -
customers. The contract liabilities would be recognised as REBRERBA -
revenue within one year. The Group recognises revenue when
“control” of goods is transferred to the customers.
In general, the Group receives certain percentage of the AEFERERAZEFPEBR—TELLONEEHE
contract sum as advance payment from the customers of the ERE mIHEENRK
sale of goods.
32. BANK BORROWINGS 32. RITER
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T AREBT T
Bank loans, secured RITER BEA 30,000 40,000
Less: Amounts classified under current DR ARE B ERRIA
liabilities
Secured bank loan that contain a BIER—F A HEED
repayment due within one year BRFIRITER (30,000) (40,000)
Amounts classified under D RIERBE EHFIE

non-current liabilities - -
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32. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

Carrying amount repayable: JEEERFIEREE
— within one year —R—FR
Secured bank loan BEMIRITER

At 31 December 2021, the bank borrowings were secured
by charges over the Group’s buildings and leasehold land of
approximately RMB4,790,000 (2020: RMB5,095,000) and
RMB2,333,000 (2020: RMB2,406,000) respectively, corporate
guarantee is provided by an independent third party. The
weighted average effective floating interest rate on the short-
term bank borrowings is 4.78% (2020: 3.99%) per annum.

At 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of bank’s
borrowings are denominated in RMB of approximately
RMB30,000,000 (2020: RMB40,000,000). The maturity date of
bank borrowings are from 11 March 2022 to 12 June 2022.

There was no breach of covenants at 31 December 2021 (2020:
nil).

FESEAMKESR AR

32. BITEK(£Z)

2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-EF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARBTT
30,000 40,000
30,000 40,000

RZE-_—F+_-_A=+—H RITHEX
MAEBEEZEFRAEL S HARE
4,790,0007T (ZZE=ZFF : AR#¥5,095,000
L) R ARY2,333,000 (ZE_FF: AR
#2,406,00070) —EBIUE = FRHENA
AIEREER - SHRITERZNETAE
B RAETFLISE (T -FF:3.99
[E) -

RZZE-Z—F+_A=+—HB ' UAR
BAEEZ2RTERZCEETEN AR AR
30,000,000t (ZE2E =T F: AR
40,000,0007T) - RITEREBHB AT ==
FZA+—B&E_ET-_—_FA+-H-

HE—_T-_—F+-_A=+—H BEER
RHE(ZEZTF |E) -
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33. LEASE LIABILITIES 33. HEAE

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had lease liabilities RZBEZ—FRZFE_FF+=_A=1+—H"

as follows: ArEBENEEGGHT:
2021 2020
—E-—F —EZTF
Present value Present value
of the minimum of the minimum
lease payments lease payments
BEHERERE SEHESHERE
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TF T ARBTT
Within 1 year R—FA 2,728 2,608
After 1 year but within 2 years BB —FERMFA 1,487 2,021
After 2 years but within 5 years HAMFEERAFA 693 1,706
2,180 3,727
4,908 6,335
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied BAREES BN NEFIHIEEERH XK
to lease liabilities range from 4.6% to 6.4% (2020: 4.6% to NFLa6% E6.4% (ZE_FTF:46%2

5.0%). 5.0%) °
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34. DEFERRED TAXATION

34. EEBIE
RAFELBEFEREANIZELEHEE

The following are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised and movements thereon during the current and

prior years:

At 1 January 2020

Recognition of tax from convertible bond

Credited to profit or loss for the year (note 13)

Release of deferred tax upon conversion of
convertible bonds

At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021

Charged to profit or loss for the year (note 13)
Exchange alignment

At 31 December 2021

Note:

R-ZZ-ZTF—F—H

R RRERFIE
FAFEER (ME13)
ERERTRRESMNETHE

R-BE-ZF+-A=+-HK
“Z--f¥-8-H

Nk BEERE (H213)

[E 5%

R-ZE--F+-A=t+-H

At 31 December 2021, the Group had unused tax losses of approximately
RMB9,409,000 (2020: RMB7,337,000) available for offset against future
taxable profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of

the estimated unused tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit

streams of the respective subsidiary of the Group which incurred the tax loss.

FESEAMKESR AR

ENBEREEZEBHNT

Allowance for
expected credit
loss on trade

and other Convertible
receivables bond Total
EWE SR
HttREW A
FEBERRE ARRES &3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
1,875 - 1,875
- (422) (422)
2,068 41 2,109
- 381 381
3,943 - 3,943
(78) - (78)
40 - 40
3,905 - 3,905

Atz -

RZZE-Z—F+-_A=+—HB AEBHEBFTHKE
EHEHARERREFNNORDARBEBRBOARE
9,409,0007t (=T =T F : AR%7,337,0007T) ° R
EEFBBEBEENAEEBENE R R RIEFROT
A TR M B T A D ARG EIEERETR

HERE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBRERME (&
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BE—_FT-_—F+_A=+—HIFE
35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

35. MEEHEANEEYHR

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising

from financing activities,

including both cash and non-cash

changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those
for which cash flow were, or future cashflows will be classified
in the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows from

financing activities.

TRALAEERETHELNBEZE
BRACLIRGEY- wﬁééiﬂ?iﬁ’]%
BERATREIRAKASRE SRAEH
HAERERERDIBRABETHNEE-

Convertible Lease Bank
bonds liabilities borrowings Total
MR ES HEBE RITER =5
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBT T ARBT T ARET T
At 1 January 2020 R-_ZE-ZF—-F—H - 4,739 40,000 44,739
Non-cash item FREEA
Accrued interest FEEtH & 279 283 1,911 2,473
Additions to lease liabilities HEBEAE - 3,711 = 3,711
Conversion of convertible bond & # 7] # % (& % (5,391) = = (5,391)
Financing cash inflows BERSMA 5,391 - 56,000 61,391
Financing cash outflows MER SR (279) (2,378) (57,911) (60,568)
Exchange alignment b 5 = (20) = (20)
At 31 December 2020 RZZ_THF
+-A=+—H - 6,335 40,000 46,335
Lease Bank
liabilities borrowings Total
HEAE RATEN &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBT R ARBTT
At 1 January 2021 RZE-_—&F—F—H 6,335 40,000 46,335
Non-cash item FREIEH
Accrued interest JFERTH) 8 336 1,523 1,859
Additions to lease liabilities HEBEARE 1,004 - 1,004
Financing cash inflows MERESRA - 30,000 30,000
Financing cash outflows MERSRL (2,914) (41,523) (44,437)
Exchange alignment R 147 - 147
At 31 December 2021 R —_—F
+-—A=+—8H 4,908 30,000 34,908
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE
36.

37.

38.

CE - A=F+—HIFE

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

The Group has no material capital commitment as 31 December
2021 (2020: RMB Nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, certain property, plant and
equipment (Note 18) and leasehold land (Note 19) of the
Group were pledged as collateral for secured banking facilities
granted to the Group.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees in
Hong Kong. The Group's contributions to the MPF Scheme
are calculated at 5% of the salaries and wages subject to a
monthly maximum amount of contribution of HK$1,500 per
employee and vest fully with employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees and each required to make contribution to the MPF
Scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions
to MPF Scheme vest immediately.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary established in the PRC
are members of a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. This subsidiary is required to contribute
certain percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and wages
to the central pension scheme to fund the retirement benefits.
The local municipal government undertakes to assume the
retirement benefits obligations of all existing and future
retired employees of this subsidiary. The only obligation of this
subsidiary with respect to the central pension scheme is to
meet the required contributions under the scheme. The Group's
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed in the central pension scheme. The Group has no
forfeiture of pension scheme contributions (i.e. contributions
processed by the employer on behalf of the employee who
has exited the scheme prior to vesting of such contributions.)
As at 31 December 2021, no forfeited contribution under the
Pension Scheme of the Group is available for deduction of
contributions payable in coming years.

The total expenses recognised in profit or loss of RMB2,191,000
(2020: RMB2,578,000) represents contributions payable to
these plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the
plan.

RESEANHEEASE A

36.

37.

38.

BARRE
AREBR-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIESE
AREARERE(ZZE_ZF: A\RBEZT) -

BEEERHA
RZBZ—FR-_T-_FTF+-_A=+—8H"
AEBETHE WEKZRE (HiF18) UK
et (MF19) B EBIEANEBER
BRFRITMEZEMS -

EARER S

AEERBEEBRHELTESHEGINAES
EAEAREREER BRI MEATESE
(e E]) AEBEMARBESF B 2 #
PIRBEEFERIEZS% At E  §LE
BEEAMHKLREA15008T -EERBRES
RFEEREGE BEREEME - RIER
BoirdEl BEXRHEEEHAKREEMEBEK
ABS5% Mo RS 8l MR - X8 AME
B8 U A L BR A&30,000/8 TR R - M & fE & 5t

SR R -

RABERIZARENBAR ZEBE /T
MRAEEZHRERSFAEKE - LK B
REAAREEEAFENTEZ—EBENL
AR REREEBHK ERERBNZE
oM TBFARAEZMNBRABRAER
BERARREKER ZRIKBNEE - ZH B
RAEILFRBASFE 2~ BERRER
EELAMBHK - AKRENRIHFIR A S
REKRSFAEHRIKERFERER - A&
B3 2 WOR R 5T Bl R (AN TR H
REBAIRHAENEEETHN R
T+ -_A=1+—R AEERKEF
278 T 3 B W SRR A IR R 2R E &Y
FER R o

RIERERNFE 4% ARKE2,191,0007T
—ZE_TF: AR¥2,578,0000T) AAEE
Bt ER AR M B REMNZ ST
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39.

40.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances as disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the Group
entered into the following material transaction with related
parties during the year.

Compensation of key management
personnel

Compensation for key management personnel, including
amount paid to the Group’s directors and the senior executive
is as follows:

Salaries and allowances e KRR
Employer contribution to pension scheme
Share based payment expenses

P A7) At 3R B S2

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Scheme on 5 June 2015 which will
remain in force for a period of 10 years from the effective date
of the scheme and will expire on 4 June 2025.

Under the Scheme, the Directors may at their discretion grant
options to the eligible participants, including but not limited
to, any Directors (whether executive or non-executive and
whether independent or not) and any employee (whether full
time or part time) of the Group or any other person, who has
contributed to the Group.

142 CHINA AUTOMOTIVE INTERIOR DECORATION HOLDINGS LIMITED

39.
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40.
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BN FAREEEBETITAEANTERR
5o

FTEEEBEAECZHE

TEERABZHE BEEMNAEEES
REMITBABZBEMOT:

2021 2020
—E-— & —E-FTHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTIT
2,100 2,277
41 13
- 400
2,141 2,690
EREE
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BE T _—F+_HA=+—HIFFE
40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

40. fERERTEI (&)

The maximum number of shares in respect to which options
may be granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company on the date of adopting
the Scheme. The limit may be refreshed at any time provided
that the new limit must not be in aggregate exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company at the date of the
shareholders’ approval in general meeting. However, the total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the scheme and any other scheme of the company must not
in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to
time. At 31 December 2021, an aggregate of 20,720,000 share
options granted under the Scheme remained outstanding,
which represented approximately 12.4% of the issued share
capital of the Company. The maximum number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted to any individual in
any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the shares in
issue on the last date of such 12-month period unless approval
of the shareholders of the Company has been obtained in
accordance with the Listing Rules. A nominal consideration of
HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the grant of an option.

FESEAMKESR AR

BBEZEEL 2 BRERBITER 7] 7
AZBRHBERSTBBEARABRERZLE
BIEAZBEBITRAI0% - Z ERABERE
FOETRBEAEXTSBARRABRRAY
HEER ARAZEBEITRAZI0% 4
i AREZET B RAR BRI A E 8B &
HEMAITEZE2AEREETER T T
BT ZHRNEBTEBATEERITRNDZ
30% RM—_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H RE
Zat E19% Y #£5120,720,00010 B8 B HE R 1T
FEARBBEETRALNI2.4% - REM
+-EAHEA - AEMERNATEE ZE
REETER AITFTETZ2ROHESEHET
BERBZ T _MAHESRE —RXEAQRZE
BTN 21%  BRIFRB EMAANEHAR
AR BLERIVERIRR - KRB R EIVETER
B B AR R S A o
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40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 40. BBRAETHE (&
Details of the movements of the share options granted by the AATRBEEREFIROMEREARDY
Company pursuant to the Share Option Scheme from the date AHIRRMEBFENT -

of grant are as below:

At 31 December 2020 RZZE_ZEF+_HA=+—H
Movement during the year
FREH
Outstanding
Outstanding before share  Outstanding at
at 1 January consolidation 31 December
Date of grant 2020 Granted Exercised Lapsed (note(ii)) 2020 Exercise period
RZ2-%% RRBEHA RZZZ2E
-fA-H HRT® +ZAZ+-H
BHAH e RAT R BRHE =Xy BAX (Bt (i) HATE RS
Category 1:
Bl
Directors
%
Zhuang Yuejin 15 May 2020 - 3,980,000 - - 3,980,000 796,000 15 May 2020 to 14 May 2022
i3 53 “Z-FFRATEA “Z-FFRATEAZ
—Z--FRA1+HMA
Wong Ho Yin 15 May 2020 - 3,980,000 - - 3,980,000 796,000 15 May 2020 to 14 May 2022
BER “Z-ZFRATEA ZZ-ZFREATRAE
ZE-_£RATMA
Xiao Suni 15 May 2020 - 3,980,000 - - 3,980,000 796,000 15 May 2020 to 14 May 2022
H &l “Z-F5RATEA “Z-TERATRAZE
“RC-FRATHA
Zhu Chunyan 15 May 2020 - 3,980,000 - - 3,980,000 796,000 15 May 2020 to 14 May 2022
RER “Z-FFRATEA T-ZERATHAE
ZZERATHERA
Total Directors = 15,920,000 = = 15,920,000 3,184,000

Bt
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40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 40. BRESTE (&
At 31 December 2021 R-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—8H

Movement during the year

ENED
Outstanding Outstanding at
at 1 January 31 December
Date of grant 2021 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2021 Exercise period
R=B=-% R-Z2=-%
—-A-H +=-A=+-A
REBH e RATE BRI BT BAHY o RATE T8
Category 1:
B
Directors
E
Zhuang Yuejin 15 May 2020 796,000 = = = 796,000 15 May 2020 to
[ “Z-ZFRATEA 14 May 2022
“Z-_ZFRATHRE
“E--FRATWmA
Wong Ho Yin 15 May 2020 796,000 - - - 796,000 15 May 2020 to
EER —Z-TFRA+EA 14 May 2022
“Z-ZFRATHEAZE
“Z--FRATWA
Xiao Suni 15 May 2020 796,000 - - - 796,000 15 May 2020 to
H AR IE “Z-ZFRATAHA 14 May 2022
“Z-_ZERATRBZE
“E-—£RARTHEA
Zhu Chunyan 15 May 2020 796,000 - - - 796,000 15 May 2020 to
KER “Z-ZFRATEA 14 May 2022
“Z-_ZFRATHRE
e Sk 5y 1=
Total Directors 3,184,000 - - - 3,184,000

EES

MEREANHEESEA T 2= %%



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBRERME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—F——Ff - H=+—HIFFZ

40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 40. BRESTE (&

Movement during the year
EREE
Outstanding
before share Outstanding at Outstanding at
Outstanding at consolidation 31 December 31 December
Date of grant 1 January 2020 Granted Exercised Lapsed (note (i) 2020 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2021 Exercise period
it b 23 RRBafHE R-B-%F R-%=-%
-B-B i t=A=t-8 tZA=1-8
REAH HATE 23:44 B BAX (Kith) HATE [25:8 =55t B&H HAGE RS
Employees and others 31 May 2017 11,040,000 - - (11,040,000 - - - - - - 31 May 2017 to 30 May 2027
EERAR “T-+FRA=T-B ZE-tERA=t-B%
T-tFRRZ1H
14 November 2017 (39,800,000) - - (39,800,000) - - - - - - 14 November 2017 to
ZE3-tFt-A1RA 13 November 2027
ZR-tET-ATEAE
ZRotE+-A1=H
4 April 2019 24,000,000 - - - 24,000,000 4,800,000 4,800,000 4 April 2019 to 3 April 2029
“Z-AEMARA “E-NENAMAZE
“R-NFRAZA
15 May 2020 - 23,880,000 - - 23,880,000 4,776,000 4,776,000
Z3-3FAATEA
12 May 2021 - - - - - 7,960,000 - - 7,960,000 12 May 2021 to 11 May 2023
e S 1) “F--FRAtZRZ
Total 74,840,000 23,880,000 = (50,840,000) 47,880,000 9,576,000 7,960,000 17,536,000
it
Note: (i) The Share Consolidation of every five issued and unissued Kraz (i) BB EHABBERRARBRATERARERK

E{E0.005B THE BT RABITEAR
BEE—IREIREE0.025B T A H
B RZFE_FFAA=THBEK-
TRARERE IR RATE (B O BT »

existing shares of per value of HK$0.005 each in the share
capital of the Company into one consolidated share with a
per value of HK$0.025 each was effective on 30 September
2020. The corresponding share option and exercise price were
revised.

The fair value of share options were calculated using the ERENATEFRA BRI GE-ER

Binomial Model. The inputs into the model were as follows: FEARBAZENT
2021.05.12 2020.05.15 2019.04.09
—g--& =-%-%F —%-A7f
Date of grant R AH EA+=H ERAt+HH mA MR
Grant date share price B B ER R0 B HKDO0.697% 7t  HKDO0.074%7C  HKD0.067/% T

Exercise price before Share Consolidation &3 & Bt RIRITTE(E HKDO0.69/%7C  HKD0.085% 7T HKDO.17%8 T
Exercise price after Share Consolidation R & BHamITRE HKDO0.69/%7C  HKD0.4257% T HKDO.57% 7T
Expected volatility THHER 12 148.93% 88.78% 75.596%
Expected life TEHIFR 2 years 2 years F 10 years &
Risk-free rate I B ) 0.096% 0.342% 1.559%
Expected dividend yield 8 HA AR B g 0% 0% 0%

BE_E-_—F+_-_A=+—BHIEE"
NESEETABRDAER I MORIELY
BARKE2218,000 (ZE_FF: ARK
1,002,0007T) °

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the equity-settled
share-based payment were approximately RMB2,218,000
(2020: RMB1,002,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBRRMEE (A

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—F——Ff - H=+—HIFFZ

41. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 7 July 2020, the Company issued 0.5% convertible
bonds (“Convertible Bonds”) with a principal amount of
HK$5,971,968 (equivalent to approximately RMB5,252,000)
to independent third parties (the “bondholder”). Each bond
entitled the bondholder to convert to ordinary share of the
Company at a conversion price of HK$0.075 per conversion
share. The Convertible Bonds are intended to be utilized for
general working capital of the Group and repayment of existing
liabilities. The maturity date of the Convertible Bonds is the
date immediately preceding the second anniversary of the date
of issue of the Convertible Bonds that is 7 July 2022.

The Convertible Bonds contain three components: redemption
option derivative, liability and equity elements. The redemption
option derivative is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss. The equity element
is presented in equity heading “Convertible bonds-equity
component reserve”. The effective interest rate of the liability
component on initial recognition is 26.59% per annum.
The valuation of Convertible Bonds was performed by an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected with
the Group.

During the year 31 December 2020, the bondholder has
convert Convertible Bonds of approximately 79,626,240 shares
as at 31 December 2020. The principal amount outstanding as
at 31 December 2020 was RMB Nil.

At 1 January 2020 RZZE-_ZTF—-H—H

Issue of Investor convertible bonds BITREERRES

Initial recognition of deferred tax liability ~ #AHER AT EBREHD
from convertible bonds ELERIEA E

Effective interest charged BEBERR S

Interest payable JEH) 8

Conversion of convertible bonds ERIARES

At 31 December 2020

RESEANHEEASE A

41. AR EH

RZZBE_ZEFELALH ARAABILE=
F([EHFHB A]) BT A S 55,971,968
7T (RERLHARES252,0007T) EL0.5
BRI EE ([ARRESR]) SH1ESE
TEHFFEAUTIETRIZERKH0.075%8 T
ZHBREEBRARQATLBR ZEF KR
REFBRBEAEE —REBESREER
EEE -ARERELFIEBEARETRRE
BRTBHAMAFZA—A T ==
F+HAER-

BB EFEE = EAKA D BEIEERE
TTETR BERERD -BEEERD
ETABRATFEAE AVEEZHREBEERE
ReoRBO2FN R [HRERES —#8
BoREEHEIBERN-BERINEERZER
FHEA26.59% ° AT R E 5 2 (H{ET) i 8
AEBWEAEZ BYLABEREXMGEME
e

REBEE-_ZT-_FTF+-_A=1+—HItFE"
BEEEAR_Z-_ZF+_A=+—HB#&
BA B EH 479,626,240 - RN T = F
F+ZA=Zt—HEHNAREERESAARBE

JT °©

Liability Equity
component component Total
BEHS BaEn CE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARETT AREFTT
2,847 2,559 5,406
- (422) (422)
279 - 279
(279) - (279)
(2,847) (2,137) (4,984)

R-ZZE-_TF+-A=+—H




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
mEMBRERME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2021
FE A=+ —HILFE

42. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT 42. KR F B BERRER2ER
OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY
2021 2020
— - —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B RRHIRE 18,760 18,760
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 31 222
18,791 18,982
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and deposits B FREBERZS 132 121
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note 7)  FEUSHT B A & FkIE (K1) 61,432 50,493
Cash and bank balances Re RiRITLE R 5,223 806
66,787 51,420
Total assets EEHE 85,578 70,402
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable to EATEBEANEEELRFE
the owners of the Company
Share capital A& A 3,476 1,984
Reserves (note 2) & (Hat2) 81,655 67,336
Total equity B 85,131 69,320
LIABILITIES =K
Non-current liability FFREAE
Lease liabilities HEBE - 33
- BB
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REMBRRMEE (A

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE—F——Ff - H=+—HIFFZ

42. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

42. RAFMBRRKRZ2ER (&)

2021 2020
—E=-—F —T-EF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT R ARETIT

Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables & 5T B R K H fth & A~ 5RIE 415 856
Lease liabilities HESRE 32 193
447 1,049
Total liabilities BEAE 447 1,082
Total equity and liabilities EnRkaEes 85,578 70,402
Net current assets REBEEFRE 66,340 50,371
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERRBAERE 85,131 69,353
Net assets EEFRE 85,131 69,320

Approved by the Board of Directors on 20 April 2022 and
signed on its behalf by:

Zhuang Yuejin
HREE
Director

EF

RESEANHEEASE A

R-BE- OB - +HHEFSHAELAR

TPIAETHREE:

Wong Ho Yin
BER
Director

EF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e B RRMEE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE—_FT-_—F+_A=+—HIFE

42. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT 42, KRR AHBRARZER (&)
OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

Notes: Hat -
(1) The amounts due from subsidiaries are non-trade nature, unsecured, (1) BRNBARREAIESHE EBEE 28
interest-free and recoverable on demand. RiRE K ME -
) Movement of the Company’s reserves. (2) KRR EZEE-
Foreign Convertible
currency Share  honds-equity
Share  Contributed translation option component  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve losses Total
TARES -
RiEE BABH BRERE  BRERE ERDORE 2 EE fit

RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETZ  ARETR

At 1 January 2020 R-F-%%-f-A 137,99 17,219 23,668 18,117 - (250,477) (53,477)
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - (43,615) (43,615)
Other comprehensive income for the year ERAMZENG - - (3.299) - - = (3.299)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRRAFELRE = - (3.299) = = (43,615) (46,914)
Share based payment expenses RAFFRAZ - - - 1,002 - - 1,002
Transfer of share option reserve upon BREXNRERBRERR

the lapse of share options - - - (15,251) - 15,251 -
Capital reduction R 161,725 = = = = = 161,725
Issue of convertible bonds EuhREs - - - - 2,559 - 2,559
Issue of share upon conversion of convertible bonds BT #REXBETRA 5,000 - - - 2.137) = 2,863
Inital recognition of deferred tax liabilities BT ARG SN ELHERE

from convertible bonds - - - - (422) - (422)
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RZEZE5+ZA=+-Ak

“52-%-8-8 304,721 17,219 20,369 3,868 - (278,841) 67,336

Loss for the year FEER - - - - - (3,180) (3,180)
Other comprehensive loss for the year Bt 2AEE - - (2,049) = = = (2,049)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEEEFELRE = = (2,049) = = (3,180) (5,229)
Share based payment expenses OEGE - - - 2,018 - = 2218
Issue of share upon placing REEREARA 17330 - - - - = 17330
At 31 December 2021 R=E--%+-A=1-H 322,051 17,219 18,320 6,086 - (282,021) 81,655
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Fade)

PR (AR

For the year ended 31 December 2021
FE A=+ —HILFE

43.

44.

NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the equity-settled
share-based payment were approximately RMB2,218,000
(2020: RMB1,002,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had
non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
of approximately RMB1,004,000 (2020: RMB3,711,000)
and approximately RMB1,004,000 (2020: RMB3,711,000),
respectively in respect of lease arrangements for office premises
and factories.

AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20 April 2022.

FESEABREEER QA

43.

44.

F(RERF
HE T -_—F+_-_A=+—BULHEE"
NEREET ARG AER I AOREY
AR¥2,218000c (ZE_ZFF: AR
1,002,0007T) °

HE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—BIFE &K
SEEENRLAENENBENHELHNE
AEESERMEEGEZHFRASTED IR
#AREN1,004,000 (ZTE_FF: AR
3,711,0007T) & 49 A R #1,004,0005T (==&
—=FF: AR¥3,711,0007T) °

BRETBSSUBERE

GAVMEHRROCRN -_E-_—_FWA-+8%#
B ENIRETE-



SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MBERHE

The following is a summary of the published results and of the assets LA T AAR&EE IR T 5 AT & HER 2 2 T35
and liabilities of the group prepared on the bases set out in the note ¥4%&HEENBEHE:
below:

Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=1+—HBLEE
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
—F—tF ZFT-NF ZT-NF —FT-TF —®¥-—F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARBTRT AR®TT AR®TR

Revenue I'ON 227,562 194,527 260,896 141,626 181,701
Gross profit EF 22,637 17,959 23,940 13,485 24,039
Loss before tax Fr % R B 1B (234,485) (63,636) (31,482) (6,286) (175)
Loss for the year RRABHEB A

attributable to owners BIEFEEIE

of the Company (236,820) (64,925) (30,176) (3,890) (410)
Basic loss per share BREXRER

(RMB cents) (AREBS) (12.0) (16.3) (37.9) (4.6) (0.29)

As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—8H
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
—E—+F ZE-)N\F ZETE-NF T_TF ZEB--F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTIT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT AR%®TR

Non-current assets ERBEE 125,148 69,749 71,503 70,590 65,321
Current assets B & E 254,694 255,432 251,059 244,714 278,521
Current liabilities BB E 123,775 126,432 143,187 135,513 151,954
Non-current liabilities EREFAE = = 3,262 3,727 2,180
Net assets FEE 256,067 198,749 176,113 176,064 189,708
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